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THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENTOE TRANSPORTATION

•IM
Department of Tratuportation

William Cass^ P.E.

Commissioner

H5
David Rodrigue, P.E.

Assistant Commissioner

Andre Briere, Colonel, USAF(RET)

Deputy Commissioner

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council November 7, 2024

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to amend an agreement with VNA at HCS, Inc. (Vendor
177274), Keene, NH, Project #68033C, by increasing the price limitation by $34,200, from $484,000 to
$518,200, effective upon Governor and Council approval, with no change to the end date of June 30,
2025. The original agreement was approved by Governor and Council on June 14, 2023, Item #74. 100%
Federal Funds.

Funding for this amendment is available in the Fiscal year 2025 budget:

04-96-96-964010-2916 FY 2025

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $34,200

EXPLANATION

NHDOT has approved a request to amend funding from Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section
5311 Rural Area Formula Program (Section 5311) by $34,200, from $484,000 to $518,200. VNA at
HCS, Inc. provides public transit service in the Keene area utilizing Section 5311 funding to support
eligible operating and capital expenses.

The Department's SFY 2025 operating budget includes funds from Section 5311 that provides funds for
capital, planning, and operating assistance for public transportation in rural areas with populations of less
than 50,000.

VNA at HCS, Inc., in conjunction with its regional partners as applicable, will provide the remaining
required non-federal matching funds. In the event that Federal Funds become unavailable, general funds
will not be requested to support this program.

The Amendment has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department has verified the necessary funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2025 budget.
Copies of the fully executed Agreement are on file at the Secretary of State's Office and the Department
of Administrative Services, and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the
Department of Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING ♦ 7 HAZEN DRIVE • P.O. BOX 483 • CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE: (603) 271-3734 • FAX; (603) 271-3914 • TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 •WWW.NHDOT.COM



Attachments

Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.
Commissioner



AMENDMENT TjO AGREEMENT

This Grant Amendment ("Amendment") is entered into this 8 day of October .
2024. by and between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the New Hampshire
Department of Transportation, 7 Hazen Drive, Concord NH 03302-0483. (hereinafter referred to
as "State") and VNA @ HCS. Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), collectively refen'ed
to as (The Parties'^. \

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a Grant Agreement, approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 14, 2023, Item 74. (hereinafter referred to as "the Grant");

I

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Grant as provided in this Amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Grant allows for amendments by an instrument in writing e.xecuted by both
Parties;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the fore ^oing, and the covenants and conditions'
contained in the Grant, and set forth herein, the Parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

I. Section 1.8, "Grant Limitation" of the G-1 form is amended to read ($518,200)

2. Amended Exhibit C. Budget, C.l be amended to include an additional $34,200 of

Federal FTA 531 1 Rural Area Formula Program Funds, for a revised contract
price of $518,200;

a. Table below
\

3. This Amendment hereunder shall becom'^ effective upon approval by the New
Flampshire Governor and Executive Council.

4. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this
Amendment, the Grant, and the obligations of the Parties hereunder. shall remain in full
force and effect with the tenns and conditions set forth herein.



EXHIBIT C

BUDGET (REVISED)

Program Funding SFY 2024 SFY 2025
!  1

Amendment
Revised

Total

FTA Section 53! 1
•  1

Adnilnisiratlon $90,000 $90,000 $0 $180,000

Capital Preventive Maintenance $22,000 $22,000 $0 $44,000

Capital ADA $14,000 $14,000 $4,000 $32,000

Operating $1 16,000 $1 16.000 $20,200 $252,200

Rural Transit Assistance Program (RTAP) -
eligible training & technical assistance $0 $0 $10,000 $10,000

Total FTA Section 5311 Funds $242,000 $242,000 $34,200 $518,200

i

Amended Total Grant Funding $518,200

h. Funds are contin^enl upon Federal appropriations.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto

above.

VNA@ HCS. Inc.

have set their hands to the date first-written

Dale: October 8, 2024

Maura McQueeney, President/CEO

NH Department of Transnortation

Dati
■Michelle L, ^Vinters ofAeronautics, Ral

By:
Print Nifme and Title

Rai

Approved by Attorney General

By: _
Print Name and Title

l & Transit

Approved by Governor and Council

Date: 2-(. 2^2-<f

G &C Item number: G &G Mcctinu Date;



VNA(aJHCS
EXHIBITS TOICONTRACT

Ameridmenl

Cerlificate of Good Standing

CertiHcate of Corporale Vole

Certificate of Insurance

FTA Ceriincaiions and Assurances

T  . 5. /r

,.T Agr^menl-j^;/ .J Ol.OriOI-.'l
2CFR Part 200

FTA Section 531 1

2024 Board of Directors

G&C Item 74 Approved June 14. 2023



State of Ne\y Hampshire
I

1

Department of State

CIriRTlFlCATE

I. Davul M. Sciinlan, Socrctan' ufSialc ol'lhc Stale ofNew I lampshiro. Jo hereby eeriily ihai VNA AT I ICS, IN'C. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofii Corpt)ratit)n regisicreJ to iraiisucl business in New Manipshire on November 18. 1^8!. I liirihcr ccriify that
I

all foes and documents required by the Secretary ol' Slate's olllcc have been received and is in gtx)d sttinding as far as this oil ice is

concerned. I

Business ID: 67798

Cerliricate Number: 0006659773

SJ
OS)

4".

IBn-

o

§

IN TKSTIMONY VVI II-KI-OI-.

I hereto set my hand and cause lo be alllxed

the Seal of the Slate ol'New Hampshire,

this 5th day of April A.I). 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secrelarv of Slate



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Eric Home

(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLCi; car^not be! contract signatory)
hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duty elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of VNA at HQS. Inc.
(Corpotalion/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting |of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duty called, and
held on September 19. 2023. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED:

That Maura McQueenev is duly authorized on behalf of VNA at HCS. Inc.
(Nam© and Titln f.f ConUacJ SigtiHloiY.i (Name of Corpcratiof'" I K.)

to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of NeW| Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and
further Is authorized to execute any and all documents, agr^ments and other instruments, and any amendments,
revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of
this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended orj repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I fukher certify that it Is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the p€rson(s) listed above currently occupy the posltlon(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations arc expressly stated herein.

Dated: Mjikt-
signature of Elected Officer

Name: (L

Title:

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE {MM/OD/YYYYJ

1/10/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLYiAND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
•PRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. I

.MPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the p6licy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Dowd Agencies, LLC
14 Bobala Road

Holyoke MA 01040

Licensem: BR-1201657
INSURED

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc.
and VNA at HCS, Inc.
PO Box 564
312 Marlboro Street
Keene NH 03431

HOMEHEA-03

.CONTACT
NAME: Diane LaFleche
PHONE -4 0 A-ii tnc
tA/C.No.ExIl: 413-437-1062

ADcmess: dlafleche@dowd.com

■ FAX
'  lA/C. Not:

\  INSURERtS) AFFOROING COVERAGE

INSURER A; Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company
NAIC »

18058

INSURER D :
I

INSURER E :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1872436851 REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

TAOdLlSUBR)
IN3D WVO I POLICY NUMBER

POUCYEFF POLICY EXP I
llMWDDfrYYYI IMMreomrYYl'

X I COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILItY

'  _j CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR
PHPK26429B6

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

[_ I p<xicY i _; 1^ Loc
I  i
I  I OTHER:

1/4/2024 1/4/2025 I EACH OCCURRENCE
:"DAMAGE"Td'R£«TEO
PREMISES lEa occunencal

MED EXP (A/iyonepaf»on)

PEKSONAL « AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

, PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

s 1.000.000

S 100.000

S 5.000

S I.OUO.UOU

$3,000,000

S 3.000.000

{ AUTOMOBILE LIABiLITY

' X 1 ANY AUTO
PHPK2e42989 1/4/2024 1MD05A ' combined single UMITl/4/202b ...{Ea 0cc«en!)

BODILY INJURY |P»f paraon)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

_ AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
i AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY I

BODILY INJURY (Peraccldant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE

_(P®' acodanO

S 1.000.000

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X I: OCCUR j
CLAIMS-MADE.

PHUB896467 !  1/4/2024 1/4/2025 , EACH OCCURRENCE S 4.000.000

AGGREGATE I S

DEO RETENTIONS innnn

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LU^BIUTY

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMREREXCLUOEO?
(Mandatory iri NH)
II MS, dasoiba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS oehM'

□ I

PER I i OTH-
STATUTE ■ \ ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

, E.L, DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

Prolassional Uablllty/Medlcal
Malpractica

PHPK2S42986 1/4/2024 1/4/2025 Each Claim Limll
• A^gre^ato

1.000,000
3.000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarht Schadul*. may ba attachad 11 mora apaca ra raquiradj
Certiricate holder is an addilional insured, per written contract.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH
Department of Transportation
PO Box 483
7 Hazen Drive
Concord NH 03302-0483

1

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
1
1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
I  ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Client#: 986155

ACORD„, CERTIFICATE OF LIABI

H0MEHEA3

JTY INSURANCE
OATe(MM.OO/YYYY)

7/09/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. !
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poHcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu ofjsuch endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

NAMEf®^ Sherri WInslow
iWo. EM): 855 874-0123 r^Cc. n<,):
AnoRFss- Sherri.Winsiow@usi.com
1  INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAtCt

INSURER A Wesco Insurance Company 25011

INSURED

Home Healthcare Hospice &

Community Services Inc

312 Marlboro Street

Keene, NH 03431

INSURERS

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSURERE

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF 'ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED ̂ BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTfl TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL
uisa

SU8R

ivya POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EPF

IMM.00)YYYY1
POLICY EXP

(MMiOD/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIUSMAOE □ OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

O RENTED
lEa occur^eficei

OEN'L AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER;□ PRO-
JECT LOG

M£D EXP (Any ont pwwi)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS ■ COUP/OP AGC

OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
|E« accideniiAUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONI V

BODILY INJURY (Pe' person)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
nonowned
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acdOeni)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
iPer actieemi

UMBRELLA LIAB

IXC6&6 LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

ClaimS-maDE

EACI^I OCCURRENCE

AOGNEQAIL

RETENTION t
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y , ^
ANY PROPRIETOR'PARTNERjEXeCUTIVEn—1
OFFICEfi'MEMBER EXCLUDED? LNJ

WWC3731065 07/01/2024 07/01/2025
PER
^ATIITF

OTH.
ER

(Mandelory In NH)
II yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERAnONS bdow

E.L EACH ACCOENT t1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE t1.000.000

6-L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT t1.000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Addlilonal Remarks Schedule.'mey be attached It more apace la requited)
Evidence of insurance

State of NH

Department of Transportation.
PO Box 483
7 Hazen Drive.

Concord, NH 03302-0483
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
iTHE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
IaCCORDANCE with THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACOHD 25 (2016/03) 1 oil
#S45487460/M45487217

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

AZSZR
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Ccrtificaiions and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2024 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant: VNA at HCS, Inc.

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: [check here) ^

Ori

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Category

01 Certifications and Assurances Required of tvery Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Fonnula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

Certification

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and LO|W or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Certifications and Assurances

2  Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and individuals with Disabilities

Programs I

Fiscal Year 2024

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testihy

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersecurily Cerlificalion for Rail Rolling Slock and
Operations

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

CKH rn tCATIONS AND ASSUKANCK^ SttJNA I URK PACK

AFFIRMATION OF AI PLICANT

Name of the Applicant; VNA at HCS, Inc.

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf of the Applicant, I declare that it has duly authorized mo to make these

Certifications and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all t'cdcral laws, regulations,
and requirements, follow applicable federal guidance, and comply with the Certil'ication.s and Assurances as

indicateil on the foregoing page applicable to each application its 'Authorized Representative makes to the Federal
Transit Administration (ITA) in the federal llscal year, irrespective ol" whether the individual that acted on his or

her Applicant's behalfcontinucs to represent it.

The Certifieaiion.s and Assurances the Applicant selects apply to each Awaril for whicli it now seeks, or mav
later seek federal assistaiKC to be awarded by I-TA during the federal llscal year.

The Applicant afTirnis the truthfulness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the

statements submitted with this document and any other submi.ssion made to TTA. and acknowledges that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of lySfi, 31 li.S.C. § .ISOl elscif., and implementing l.'.S. DOT regulations,

"Program Fraud Civil Remedies,'' 49 CFR part 31. apply to any ccitificaiion. assurance or submission made to

FTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § lOtM apply to any cenificarion. assurance, or submission made in

connection with a federal public transportation prognim authoi'i/ed by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute



Certillcalions and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

III sijiiiiiig Ihis diKJuniciU. I dccliirc imdcr pciuillics ofpcrjiin' ihiil llic llircgoiny, Ccnificauons and /Sssiiranccs. and
iuiy odicr stalcmcnls made by iiic on bchalfol" the Applicant arc irnc and accurate.

Signature d-UA-i

Name Maura McQueeney

Dale 8. 2024

.Authorized Kepre.senialix e of Applicant



FFY 2024 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

I

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2024 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement In order to receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

I acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2024 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is r^eferred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

\/f\/A- oTf
Name of Agency

CJ\A^L<>S
Name of Authorized Official

Date

er/ V-
Signature



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
nfTriiMimrlAtiitn

Revised 07/11/2024

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
I
I

Name ofAwarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Afiency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name of Suhrecipient Af;ency: VNA HCS

VNA @HCSs shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements as
outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and Federal
Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as
follows:

FTA award project clescription: ̂.-t.v required to he responsive to the Federal Fundiiif' Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $34,200

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.509

FTA Award Name; FTA SFXTION 5311 (RURkL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
PROJFXT SOLICITATION

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): N

Federal Award Date: 09/08/202!

I-202I-0I7

Contact information for sub-awarding official:

Name: Frederick J. Butler Title: Director of Aeronautics. Rail & Transit

Email: Frederick.).Butler(§dot.nh.gov Phone: 60:
Is this award for research and development? No
NFIDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

-271-2565

Subrecipient information:

Subrecipient Name: VNA HCS

Subrecipient SAM.GOV I.D.: K76NXGVNIXX3

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official; Maura McQueeney

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: President/CEO

Federal Clauses: Yes

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
(jovernnient or. if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated het^veen the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost
paragraph (f)).

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: 6/14/23 End Date: 6/30/25

(lie as defined in §200.414 indirect. (Fili.'U costs.



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
Ih'finiimr.ni n/Traui/mitnlMn

Revised 07/11/2024

Total amount of FTA sub-awarcl obligated bv this action (aLTc'etnent/amemiment):

Per FFY: 2025 Section: 531 1 Amount: $34,200 |

Total amount of FTA sub-awarj committed tolthe suhrecinicnt (orhhwiiiiin'cmeni& amcmiments):

For FFY: 2025 Section: 531 1 Amount: $518.20o!

Pass-through requirements:

The Subrecipient, VNA @ HCS agrees to meet all requirement imposed by the pass-through
entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is used in accordance with Federal
statute.s, regulations, and the temis and conditionsjof the Federal award.

The Subrecipient, VNA @ HCS agrees to any additional requirements that the pass-through
entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to
meet its own responsibility to the Federal awardin'g agency (FTA) including identification of any
required financial and perfonuance reports.

The Subrecipient, VNA @ HCS agrees to permit t he pass-through entity (NHDOT) and auditors
to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements as necessary for the pass-
through entity to meet the requirements of this pai^; and appropriate tenns and conditions
concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: October 8, 2024

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Maura McOtieeney

Title of authorizing subrecipient official; Presiclenj^EO
Signature of authorizing subrecipient official^—



I  Home Healtlicare
/ yVV Hospice

iftjComniiuiity Services
I ̂ jmd \'NA at HCS, Inc.

2024 Board Members

Paul Berch

Director

Mary Ann Davis

Director

Julie Green

Secretary

Ann Heffernon

Director

Eric Home

Treasurer

Virginia Jordan

Chair

Donald Mazanowski, MD

Director

William Pearson

Director

David Stinson

Director

Julie Tewksbury

Director

Andrew Trembiay, MD

Director

Maura McQueeney

President & CEO

Know us betbrc you ticcci us...

HCS is iiifiri' ilian voii con ituoi^inc

312 Marlboro Street

PO Box S64

Keene.NH 03431

603-352-2253 • 800-541-4145

33 Arborway

CharlestownjNH 03603
603-828|3322

9 Vose Farm Road

PO Box 496

Peterborough, NH 03458

603-532-8353

www.HCSservices.org • info@ihcsservices.org
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WUiiam Cass, RE.
Commissioner

THESTA TE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTADON

G&C'#74 I
Date 6/14^23 IH

David Rodrlgue, P.E.
Assistant Commissioner

Andre Briere, Colond. USAF(JtET)

Deputy Commissioner

Bureau of Rail & Transit

April,26, 2023
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with VNA at HCS, Inc. (Vendor
177274), Kecne, NH, for an amount not to exceed i$484,000 for public transportation services for the
period July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2025, effcctiye upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal
Funds.

Funding for this agreement Is contingent upon the availability of funds in Fiscal Year 2024 and Fiscal
Year 2025, with the ability to adjust encumbrances
if needed and justified.

04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal

through the Budget Office between State Fiscal Years

FY 2024

$242,000

FY 2025

$242,000

EXPLANATION

VNA at HCS, Inc. has been awarded Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5311 Rural Area
Formula Program (Section 5311) funding in the amount of $484,000 to provide public transit service in
the Keene area. FTA Section 531 1 funding supports eligible operating and capital expenses.

VNA at HCS, Inc. is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation, including
transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in the City of Kecne. The Department has
allocated federal and Slate funding for the FY 2024j-2025 biennium based on prior funding levels,
applications received, and available funds. For the FY 2024-2025 biennium, VNA will receive $484,000
of Section 531 1 funds. Details relative to the 531 Ifiinding program and VNA's award of these funds arc
outlined below.

The Department's proposed SFY 2024 and 2025 operating budget includes funds from the Section 531
that provides funds for capital, planning, and operating assistance for public transportation in rural areas
with populations of less than 50,000. j
The Department released a public notice on February 16. 2023, announcing the availability of Section
5311 funds. Applications for requested funding were due on March 21,2023. The Department received
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applications for six (6) rural public transit systems and awarded funding to each transportation system.
The systems and their respective application scores are as follows:

Transit System Applicant
Average
Score

Concord Area Transit Community Action .Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
(existing services) 1

.83%

Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc. (existing services) 81%

City Express VNA at Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services
(existing services) i 76%

Sullivan County
Transportation

Southwestern Community Services (existing services)
76%

North Country Transit Tri-County Community Action Program (existing services) 74%

Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc. (expansion - evening services) 73%

Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc. (expansion - Saturday services) 73%

Carroll County Transit Tri-County Community Action Program (existing services) 72%

An evaluation committee that consisted of the Public Transportation Administrator, Fred Butler, Transit
Grants Coordinator, Paula Devens, and the Transit jCompliance Specialist, Cathy Cormier reviewed,
evaluated, and scored Section -5311 applications based on criteria as indicated in the application materials
and the Department's Slate Management Plan for FTA programs. The evaluation maitrix is provided below
for reference:

Evaluation Criteria Weight

The proposed service effectively addresses an NljlDOT policy goal (per statewide transit
study) and/or the proposed service is a continuatibn of existing services.

15%

2
The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate its
service and demonstrates successful experience in providing transportation services.

30%

3

The application demonstrates an effort to involvejthe private sector in the delivery of
transportation services as well as involvement in and support for the project, financial and
otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government.

20%

4

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness, measured in
ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare|recovery as applicable. New applicants
must demonstrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

15%

5
The application shows coordination with other transportation providers in the service area:
public, nonprofit, and for-profit. | 10%

6
The applicant complies with relevant Federal andjstate regulations and has a history of
compliance with regulations and reporting requirements.

10%

1

1 100%

Note: Every application met the Department's criteria for inclusion in its SFY 2024 - 2025 public
transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts.for the aforementioned transit systems.



VNA at HCS, Inc., in conjunction with its regional partners as applicable, will provide the remaining
required non-federal matching funds. In the event that Federal Funds become unavailable, general funds
will not be requested to support this program.

The Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department will verify the necessary funds are available pending enactment of the Fiscal Year 2024 and
2025 budget. Copies of the fully executed.Agreemcnt are on file at the Secretary of State's Office and
the Department of Administrative Services, and su" ^
on file at the Department of Transportation.

)sequent to Governor and Council approval will be

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William Cass, P.E.

Commissioner

Attachments



Subject: SFY 2024'2025 FTA Section 5311

GRANTA

FORM NUMBER C-I (^Wlori 11/2021)

IREEMENT

- The Stale of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL iPROVISIONS
1. id'cntificationian'H bcfinititThs.

r 1.1 ..State Agcncy.Nainc: f*;
1 NH Department of Transpdrtatibn

"Slate Agency Addrc.s.s

PO. Box 483 & Hazen Dr.'Concord. NH

03302-04.83

1' 1.3; Grantee Name
VNA @ HCS.

f.4. Grantee Address

312":Marlboro St.. PO Box 564. Keene^ NH 03431-4163

1.5 ■Graiuec Plionc U

603-352-2253

1.6. Account Number

^0"4,-^96-'96-964010-2916-
72t500575

d'

.1.7.;.Gbihplctioh Date

June.30. 2025

I.S^CraiU.Limltalion

$484;poo;oo

1 1.9. Grant Ofllccr for State Agency 1
1 Frederick Butler; Public Transportalibh Administrator,'

Bureau": bf Rail & Transit |

I.lb. Slate.Agency Telephone Number

603-271-2565

If Grantee is a rhunicipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify that wc have cotiipllcd with
any piiblic mcctihg rcquircmcnt for acceptance of this grahl, including if applicable RSA'31:95-b."

1.12. Name & Title of Grantcc Signbr 1

Grantee Signature 2
N/A

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2
N/A

Grantee Signature 3
N/A

*

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3
'N/A

1.13 State Agency Signaturc(s|_^^
rc^ -<r,

1.14. NanK & Title of State Agcncy':Sighdf(s)
■ L . y<i"; I V-fc/" f

niiiRrtnrnfl-.rS. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substancjc and Execution) (if'G,& C approval^rcquircd)
By: As««tahl,Attorncy,GcncnH, Oh:

1.16. ApprnroMiyGowmbr and Council (if applicable). 1^1 2023
SECRETARY OF STATE

2..SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for. grant funds provided by the State of Nc\v Hampshire, acting
through tlie Agency identified in block .1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee, identified in
block 1.3 (hcrcinaftcr referred to as "the Grantee"), shall |>crfon-n that work identified and more'partieularly
described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work-being hcrclnaftcf referred to
as "the Project").
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■I.

4.1,

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.
< 1

.VJ.

•5.5.

7.2.

S.

J!.l.

S.2.

S.3.

H.
9.1.

.AKKA CQVKKKI). lixcrpl ai ochcmiic «|VTiric«1t>' (Mi>\'iikd for hcicin. lite
(•nuiicr shall pcrfunn the Project in. and tciih rrspcci in, iIk' State of Ncu*
Haii^shin*.
Kh'KKrnVK PATH: COMPl.KTIOiN OK t'HOJKCr.
This AyrcciiKni. mtd till obligations of the panics hcrcinidcr. shall hcconic
clTcCiivc on the dare on the date of ep(iro«-al of iWs AgrcciiKiM hy the Oo«Tnt»r
aitd Council of the State of New Hampshire if rctjuired lN.>cfc 1.16). or up.m
sicnatiireby tl>c State AgctKy as<ho^«l in hl««cb i.N ("the ItlTcctivc fhic").
l-lxcqH as oihcT>\isc spceifK'ally pnividcd herein, the Pmjcct. includins all reports
reijuircd hy this Agreement, shall he ct>inplcicd in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (horeinaQcrrelerTed tops "theCompletion Oatc").
<;KANT A6IOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT; VQUCllK.H.S:
pavaiknt.
The (irani Amount us idGntified and ntnre particularly dcttcrihcd in liXHIllIT C.
attached hereto. '
'Hir manner of. and schedule of payment tlull bc>s.<ct (imh in liXIMIHTC.
In accordance with the pruvutioos set forth in ILVIHQfr C, aitd in coiisidcratttvi
of the .saiisraetory pcrfunitaiKc of the Piojeci, as dctcnnincd hy the State, and a.<
limited by suhpuragraph 5.5 of these general piocisions. the State dnll pay ilie
Graitice the Cronl Amount. IIk Suie shall withhold fmm the smouni oihcnvisc
paynhle lo the (iramcc tinder this subpaiugnph 5.i those sums rctpiirvO. or
pciniiiivd. to he withheld pursuaiu to N.H. RSA 80:7 thiough 7<.
The payinnti by the State of the C>rant amount shall be the only, and the roinpkic
payment to the Grantee ftv all e.tpcnscs. of whsiet'cr nature, incurred by iIk
Gnnivc in the |>crlbrmancc hereof, and sliall be the only, and the cninpk-ir.
compctisaiUxt to the Grantee for the Project. The State shall hatr tto liahiiiiies to
the Cranicv other dian the Ctnni Anx>unt.
Niitwiihstanding anything in this Agreement to iIk contrary, and notwiihsiatMltng
unexpected circiimsuuKCS, in ira event shall the l«)Ul of all payoKnis aiiihoriA;d,
or actually made, hcrcundcr cacced the Cnnt limitatioa set forth in blnck 1.8 «if
these gaicral provisions.
COMPl.lANCK HV GKA.VIKK WITH I.aWS AND HKGUI.ATIONS. In
eunneetton tvith t)ie perfomianceol'ihc Project, the Grantee shall comply mih all
statutes. b\v9' irguiations. and onicn of federal, state, county, or municipal
auilmritics which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Crvnicc. including
the acquisition of any and all necessary permits and (ISA 31 •95-b.
KKCORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Bcitvecn the liffcctixT ITsite and the date seven (7) yean after the Completion
Dale, unless oiherwistr required by the grunt terms or the Agency, the (iramcc
shall keep derailed accounts of all expertscs'ihcufred in conocctktn u-iih the
Project, iiKluding, but not limited lo.^costs of adminisraiion. irunsponaiion,
insurance, telephone calb. and clerical inaiaials and scnnccs. Sucf^ accuitins
slmll he supported hy rcccipi.s, intviccs. bills and other similar diKumcni.s.
Between i)k tlTcctivc Date and the date $0*00 (7) years after the Compk-iinn
Date, unless otherwise required by the gram terms or the AgcrKy pursiant lo
Stihp.trusra|>h 7.1, ul any linK iJuring the Grantee's normal business buuipc. and as
often as the Slate shall demand, the Grantee shall make avaliable to the State all
revHirds pertaining lo mailers cox'crtd by this Agrccinctu. 1hc GnuucC shall
permit tlK State to audit, examine, and rrprodir.e swh reroftJt. and K»
of all ciuiiracis. inviticcs, nulcrtals, payrolb, rvcords of personnel, data (as that
term is hereinafter defmed); and other informaiion relating lo all niauers covered
by this AgrcoiKnL.^uy^i^a^^ itfa&liq
tratunil or nciionar, SffiTiircaTwih. controHw by, or under eomition ownciship
with, the cmiiy tdoKified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these pruvisions
PKR.SONNKU
11k Gmntcc iliall, ni its men expense, provide all personndx^xssary it^Krfonn
tiK Project. IIk Grnntcu u-arrjnis that all |>crsomiel enpg^ m the Project shall
he qunliricd In pcrfoim such Project, and shall be pmpcdy licensed and authoti/cd
to pcrfonn strch Pnijcct under oil applicable laws.
lite Grantee shall rHU hire, and it shall not pennit any subcuniructor. snhgramce.
or other persoti, finn or corporation with tvhom it is enpgcd in a combined cffon
10 perform the Project, to hire any person who has a cootruciual relationship with
iIk Slate, or who is A Slate ofTiccf or employee, elected or appointed.
Hic Grant OfTiccr shall be the representative of the State hereundci. In the cvati
of any dis}tuic hcrcuitdcr, ihc mtccprctatkm of this Agrcemeiii by iIk Cmnl
OlTiccr. and his«bcr decision on any dispute, shall be rmal.
DATA: HKTKKTIQN OF DATA: ACCRS.S.
As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all infonnaiion and things
dctvlopcd or obtained during the pcrforntaoce of, or acquired or detx*lopcd b)'
n-«son of, this yXgrccmcnl, itKluding. but not limited to. all studies, repurts, files,
formulae. sur\'ct-s. maps, clciru. sound recoidiitgs, video recordings, picinrial
tvproJuciions, dr3wiiig.t, analyses, grapliic rcprescmaiiutet.

9,2.

V'
9.4.

9.5,
I
I
II).

I,1.1.

II.l.l
11.1.:

n.1.3
ii.1.4
11.2,

1U.1

11.2.2

n.2.)

i1.2.4

12.
t) I

12.2.

124

I.I

cmnpmcr programs, conqtutcr priniout.x. ntues. letters, memoranda. pjpiT. and
docuiiKnts. all whether finislKd or unfmi.'chcd.
Hciuvcn iIk litTvctivc Date and the C'oniplciiiHi Date the Grtnncc .diall gnnit to
the Stale, or any person dcsignaicd by it. unresirictrd ikccs.< 10 all data ItW
e.xamination. duplication, publication, irunslaiion, nic. dtSiiosal. or fnr any tMlu'
pnip^ise whatsoever.
No data shall he subject to copyright in the United States or imy other ci-oniry by
anyone mhcr than the StUC.
I'hi and afler ihe liffeciivc Ihiie all data, aod any prt>pcrty which has bccti icrci\\*d
from iIk Slate tv purehasvd with funds provided fnr that purpose under this
.Agrvcmcnt, shall he the propcny of (he State, and shall he rciuoKd to tlx State
upon demand or upoa rerminaiiuo of this AgrcettKni for any reason. whichc\-cr
shall first occur.
11k State, and an>'\ine it siwil designate, shall hove unrestricted aotlKHiiy to
ptthlish, disclose, dlsirihuie and otherwise use, in whole or in pan. all titia.
CGKnrnONAI. NATtlUK OH AflllKKMKNT. Nrawiihsiaitdiiig anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligaitons of the State hcrcundo. including,
without limitaiiiui, iIk cominuniKC of paj-mcnis Itcrcundcr. arc cuniingeni upon
the availability nr continued apprupiiation of funds, and in no event shall the Siuie
he li.nhlc for any payments hcrcundcr in excess of such mailablc or apiwopriaicd
funds. In tiK event ol'a reduction or lerminaiioii of those I'liiidr, the State shall
li.ave <1k right lo uiihlM>ld payment until such ftiiids become nvailahlc. if ever, ami
.shall have tiK right to lermiruitc this Agreement unitKdiaiely upon giving the
Graniec^nntice of siKh icrminaiion.
KVUNT OP nKKAUl.T: KKMKDIK.S.

Any lUKivmurcof the following acts or omissions of the Ch-unice shall cnnsiiiuic
an event of default hercundcr (hcrcituflcr re ferred to a.> "li«-ciiis of fXifauii'l:
Kailiiiv to perform the Project ulisfacton'ly or rat schedule; or
Kailiirc to submit any rqton retiutrcd hcreuttdcr: or'
I ailurc to maiiuain. orttermit access to. the records required hcrcundcr or
Taiiure to pcrfonn any of.tlK other cmvuanis and cortdhions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrviicc ofony ts-ent of [Xrfauh, the Stoic may take ony one. or more,
or all. of the foUowiog actions;
Give the Cnmec a written notice tpccifyhtg the litmt of i >cf3uli and requiring it
to be remedied within, in Ibe absence of a greater or lesser speciricaiioii of liinc.
thirty (30) days from the date of the noitee; and if the livcnt of IXT'aiili is not
liiiKly remedied, lermniaic this Agrevmera, cffcctitx two (2) days after giving ihc
Grantee notice of termination; and
(ht* the Grantee a written notice specifying the r.tvni of Defauli and suspcndin"
all p.at7naits to be made under (his Agreement and ordering ihol the poitiouof t.
Gram Amuuni which would oihcrwix accrue to the Cramcc during the perio^
fiofli iIk date of snch (u4icc umil siKh liiiK its the Siuic dcicniihtcs that the
Graiiiec has cured tlx lltreiii of IXTauii shall never be paid lu the Gratnue; and
Seioffagainsianyoihcrnhiigaiiun the State may owe inihcGiamcv any damages
the State suffers by lenson of any I;vent of IXfauU; and
Trent Ihc agreement as brcnchcd and pumic any ofits remedies at law or iti equity,
or both.
•rr.RMINATION.
In ikr rvrni fit %t\y mHy Inminaiinn nf this Agr<*raiuvu fnr any r,^a<nn ra lwrr than
the cooiplciion of the Project, (he Grvntee'shall deliver to the (irani OITiccr. not
bter than flfUxn (15) tbys after the date of tcmunation, a rqwtn (hcrrinafUs
referred to as the ""Terminatirat Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant .Amount earned, to and inrlwding the date of Icnniiisiinn.
In lite cvou of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these gciwral
provisions, the approval of such a Tenninaiim Rcpon by iIk State shall entitle
the Grantee to avciw dui portion of the Grant amuuni ranxx) to and including
iIk date of termination. . ,
in the evpii of Tcrntirtaikm under paragraphs 10 ur 12.4 of ilicsc general
provisions, (he approral of such a Tcnntnatioo-Rcpon by the State shall in no
event relieve (he Granlcc from any and all liability for damages sustained ra
incurred, by the State as a remit of the Grantee's breach of its nbligaiions
hcrcundcr.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either iIk Stole or.
c.xcepi where itoiice default has been given to the Grantee hcrcurtdcr, the Cinnicc.
may icrminaic (his Agreement Mxihoui cause upon thirty (30) days «-riiien itoiice.
CONFLICT Oh' INTKRHST. No ofTicer. iitcmber of employee of the Grantee,
artd no representative, offreer ur emplo)X-e of the Suic of New Hampshire or of
(he goreming body of the luealiiy or localities in whidi the Pmjrci is lu he
pcrfoniKd. tvho cxercisct any functions or rcsponsthilities in the review or
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I-

15.

)6.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

up]in>t'ai of ihc (inJcnakiit|; iir varrying iha vf Mch Trojcvi. shall (unictjmc inj 17.2.
any Occisitai n.-l3iin{{ lo ihis Agrccnwiii which an'ccishisiw hcrpcnwoalinicrcsi
»r ilic iniocsi of any cwp^imkHi, lunncrsJi'rp. ot assuciaiiim in which he iv Slic
is ilirvcily ur imlinx'd}' iincrcslal. iwr slull he <>s slw h.ivc any personal iir
pcuwiary inicrcsi. ditcci ni inJircci, in ihis AgtcatKTU or the proceeds ihcrcor.
(;R.\N-rKK=.S RKI./\TION TO THK .STaTF. In ihc pcrf.innaiKc of ihis
Acrcvnu-ni ihc Grantee, ils employees, and any suhcontracKtr or snhcranirc of IX.
ihc Cranicc arc in all rcsiKCU indepcndcni cuiuraciora. and src 'nciihcr.nscnis
iwr cmplov-ecs of ihc Siaic. Neiihcr ihc Gnntn- nor any of iis olTia-rs.
cnipto>-ccs. asenu. nicmhcrv subconirswinn or suh'erantccs.' shall have authnriiy
to hind Ihc State nnr arc they cniiilod lo any of ihc hcncriis. w\)rkmen's
conipcnsaikMi or cmolumcnu provided by ihc Siaic u> its employees:
ASSICN.MKNT AND SL'llCOfO'k/VCT.S. The Cninice shall not assign, or 19.
oiherwHsc iransfcr any inicrcsi in this Agrccmeni uiihnui the pnitr. written
conscni of ihv Siaic. None of the Pn^'cei Work shall he subconiiaeicd or
subgranlcd by the Grantee other than as set forth ht l-Ixhibii 1) without the prior
written Cswscnt of the State. 20.

INDKiMNll'ICATIQN. 'fhe Gramcc shall dcfcitd. indemnify aitd hold
liannlcss the State, its ofTlcos and employees, fitHii und ugainsi any and all
krsses strfTcred hy the State, its ofncera and anpluyrcs. and any and all rbims.
liahiliiics or pcnaliics asserted against the State, its olTtccn artd cmpKiyccs, by 21.
or on behalf of any person, on accinint of. based nn. resulting frunt. ari.ting out
offor vvhitdi may be claimed to arise out oO the acts nr omissions of the Grantee
or ftuheonttaetor, ur subgrantcc ur other agent of the Grantee. Koiwiiluaanding
lite foregoing, rMihing htaxin cont-tincd diall be dcvoKd to cunsiitute aiwaivcr
of the SiWcrcign muttunily of (he State, which inuiwntty is hereby reserved to
the State. 1 his covenant shall survive the ierminaiinn of this agreement. 22.
INS1JR.\NCK. I
The Gnntcc shall, at its own expense, obtain axtd maintain in force, ik shall 23.
iet]uire any subcunttKior. subgrantcc or assignee pcrfomting Pryjcct -wurk to
obtain and rmaintain in force, both for the bcucfii of the State, the following
insurance:

Siniiiiory workers' cunipensation and einployves liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the pcrfomiance of the rmjeet. and
GeiKra! liability insiiruncc against all claims ofbodilyinjurio.distli or properly
damage, in aniouius not less than Sl.000.000 per occurrence and S2.000.000
aggrcptc for bodily injury or ticath anyone incident, and SiOO.OOO for prupcny
damage in any ottc incident: ami

ThcpoiicicsdcSerilicd insuhparagrapl) J7.I dfihisparagraphshallbeihesiandard
lltrm employed in the State of Nc^v Hampshire, issued byutMicrwriiers aee<*ptahlc
to the State. •nd»uihirri>^MliuduhusiiM.'S>'in the State of Nv-w Hampshire. Grantee
shall ftiniish tu the State, eeriirieates of insurance fot all rciK-w.aiis) uf insuninee
rct^uirvd under tins Agrconcni rw laiei llun ten (Ml) days prior to the espiration
ilatc ofeach insurance potic>'.
WaIVF.R of DRKaCII. Ko failtire by the Slate to aifurcc any proosions
hereof after any liventof Default shall be deemed a waiver of its riglits with regard
to that I:vent, or any subsequent l^eni. No c.spren watwr of any liveiti of J\-faiilt
shall be liccmcd a waiver of any provimins Itcrcof. No such failure of waiver
shall be decnted a waiver of the riglu of the State to enforce e.ach and all of the
provLsions hcicof upon any further or other defiiuh on the pun of thcGranice. '
NdTlCK. Any ttoticc by a pariyhea-to to the twherpany sliall he dccmi-d to have
been dniy dcliwrcd or gisxn at iJk litne of mailing by cenifK-d moil, postage
prepaid, in a United Stales I'ost OfTice addressed to the parties at the addresses
firw above glNxn.
AMKNDMKWI'. 'Ihis Agrcnncni may be amended, waived or discharged only
hy an instrument in wTiliiig sigtied by the panics hereto tutd only uftcr ii|tpiovul of
snch DinetidttKni. waiver'ur discharge by the Governor and 0<uncil of the Siule
■sCNcw Hampsliia*. il'nrqulrcd orbvihc signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCITGN OK AGHKKMKNT AND TKKhl.S. Thi.* Agicancm shall
he construed in accordmec with the law of the State of New H.impshire. and is
binding upon and inures lei the hcnclit of the pcirlics and their rr.ipceiivv successors
and a.ssicnces. The captions and comeni.s of the "snhjcei" blank are used only as
i matter of convxnicncc. and arrnnt to be considered a part of this Agrccincni
to be Bscd in determining the intend of the panics hereto.
THIRD PARTI H.S. The panics hereto do t>oi intend ir* hcnclit anythird panics
and this Agreement shall not be c<mstrued to confer any such hcncrn.
KNTTRK AGRKflMKNT. "ITtis Agrccntem. which nuy be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, cunsiiluics ihe cnitrv
agrceittcni and undcrtuntiiRg between lite panies, aitd supersedes all prior
ngrecnicins tutd understandings rvl.uing hereto.
.^tPKClAI. PROVISlOiNS. The additiuiial ur modifying pmvi.sioas so forth in
lixhibtt A hereto arc incttr)>oratcd as pan itf this agievntent.
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VNAjgHCS
EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT B

EXHIBIT C

EXHIBIT D

Specia

Scope

Provisions

of Services

Budget
i

Vehicle List
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VNA @ HCS, INC.
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A.l. . Amend 01 Section 2. "SCOPE OF WORK" by adding the following:

2.1. The Grantee may change scrvices'as described in Exhibit B, Scope of Services (hereinafter the
■"Services") only with the prior written agreement of.lhe State and in accordance with applicable
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

A.2. Amend G-l Section 3. "AREA COVERED" by adding the followitig:

3.1. Services may extend to adjacent states with prior written approval from the Slate. The State
reserves the right to require formal cost allocation me^ures.

A.3. Amend G-l Section 5. "GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:
PAYMENT" by adding the following;

5.6. As applicable based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to the Grantee
shall not exceed 50% of allowable operating costs less fare revenues plus 80% of allowable
administrative and capital costs. Operating, administrative and capital costs arc identified in
Exhibit C. The Grantee shall provide and |document the availability of local funds sufficient to
meet the project cost in excess of the Grant Price Limitation.

In the event* that revenues exceed the to^l allowable costs, said revenues in excess of total
allowable costs shall be placed in an interest-bearing account within 30 days of the Completion
Date and made available to the State upon demand.

The Grantee shall submit a request for payment to the Slate on a form specified by the State on a
monthly or quarterly basis, together with all infomation to support the request. Such requests for
payment shall be properly completed and sighed. Requests for payments must be for allowable
costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200. No requests for advance payment will be accepted by
the State.

5.9. Upon receipt of the request for payment, the Slate shall review the request to determine the
allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand production of (and
the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any documents ahd'rMords described in Section 7.

5.10. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records required
by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due and owing to
the Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this Agreement.

5.7.

5.8.

5.1 1. Final Payment. The Grantee's provision
condition precedent to final payment.

of all reports required under this Agreement is a

A.4. Amend G-l Section 6. "COMPLIANCE BY GRAIVTEE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS" by adding the following':

6.1. The Grantee shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of the Federal Title VI non-discrimination
requirements.

-6.2. The Grantee shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, age, creed,
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sex, or national origin.

6.3. The provisions of 2 CFR 200 shall apply to local administration of this agreement and any
subgrantec under this agreement. j

A.5. Amend G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATfON" by adding the following:

12.5. The Termination Report must be approved by the Stale and the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) prior to final payment.

12.6. Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Grantee which, by
the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Dale, upon the completion of the
Services and upon payment of the Grant Ijrice, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hercundcr, shall cease and neither party shall have further recourse under the Agreement.

A.6. Amend C-l Section 9. "DATA; RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS" by adding the
following: ^

9.6. The following restrictions apply to a)l subject data first produced in the performance of this
Agreement:

9.6.1 Except for its own intcmal use, the Grantee may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Grantee authorize others to.do so,
without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the public.

9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non-cxclusivc and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others to
use, for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant, cooperative agreement,
sub-grant, or third part)' grant, irrespective of whether a copyright has been obtained; and
any rights of copyright to which a recipient,,sub-rccipicnt, or third party contractor
purchases ownership with Federal assi-stance.

9.7. It is the FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Grantee understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.6 (b) above, the FTA
may make available to any recipient, subgrantec, grantee or subgrantec its license in the copyright
to the date derived under this Agre'cmerit or a copy of the data first produced under this
Agreement.

9.8. The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State and United States, their officers,
agents, and employees acting within the jscope of their ofTicial duties against any liability,
including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation of the proprietary
rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction,

-delivery, use,, or disposition of any data furnished under this Agreement.

9.9. Nothing contained in this clause shall impljj a license to the United States under any patent or be
construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the United'
Slates under any patent.

9.10. Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material furnished to the Grantee by the
State or United States and incorporated in th|e work furnished under the agreement; provided that
such incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.

9.1 1. In the event that the project is not completet for any reason, all data developed under the project
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shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the State or the FTA
may direct. j

A.7. Amend G-t Section IS. "ASSIGNMENTS/AND/SUBGRANTEES" by adding the following:

15.1 The Grantee shall cause the provisions of this grant to be inserted in all subgranls for any work
'  covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each subgrantee; provided,

however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to subgrantces for standard commercial
supplies or raw materials. The Grantee shall take such action with respect to any subgrant as the
Slate may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance.
The Grantee shall ensure that any subgrantee has obtained all licerises, perrnits or approvals
required for the performance of grant Services.

A.8. Amend G-l by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS

A.9.

26.

26.

26.2.

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are

satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation,

incurred in the performance of the Services which

Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to the State
detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Grant as modified and approved
by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation services
being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include funds from subgrants, contracts, purchase
of'service agreements, and excess matching funds.that directly benefit the transportation service.

SECTION 5311; Scction53ll ofthe Federal Transit Act of I964;as amended.
I

I

STATE: The State of New Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation, Bureau
of Rail and Transit. '

Amend G-I by adding "ACCOUNIING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26: ■.

ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
Ledgers. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for Mch budget
category. Entries shall be made and'shall reflect the financial activities of the Grantee. The ledger
sheet must be in a form approved by the Slate! The ledger will indicate the funds remaining in each
line item ofthe Grant Budget at the'beginning of each month. Entries shall be rfiade on a running
basis and carried over to the following month;|ihat is, figures will be brought forward cumulatively.
Grantee shall also prepare and submit to the State a profit and loss statement quarterly if such
information is not provided with invoices. |
Accounts Receivable. The Grantee and/or jsubgrantce shall deposit aU rcvcnuc in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Grantee shall prepare and maintain receipt
vouchers for all revenue. Immediately uponj receipt, Grantee and/or subgrantee shall credit alt
revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain
an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt number appearing in the Ledger shall correspond to
the receipt voucher number. A receipt voucher must be completed on a form approved by the State
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and shall identify each component of every deposit. All appropriate supporting documents for each
deposit should be attached to the receipt voucher. ^

26.3. Payablcs. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures of funds.
The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a form approved by
the State: The Division and account numbers from which the funds will be drawn, the dale of
expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any appropriate comments supporting the
expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll vouchers). All Invoices received by the Grantee
shall be checked for accuracy and allowability. Each invoice must be approved for payment by the
Grant Manager or designee. Immediately upon payment. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall make
entries to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Each subgrantee shall identify a
Grant Manager). j

26.4. Voucher and Receipt Register. Grantee land/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain two
registers that will contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers will provide
a summary of voucher or receipt numbers', amount, and purpose of action. No self-designated
abbreviations arc to be used. |

26.5. Check Register. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall maintain a check register. This register is also
considered a book of original entry and is posted to the ledger immediately.

\  j '
26.6. Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall require each of its employees

to I) submit weekly time reports designating work performed and lime spent on.such work, or 2)
be included in an indirect cost allocation plan approved bythe cognizani Federal agency. The
Grantee shall summarize tirhe reports by task and apply employee's rates of pay to the hours
worked. The Grant Manager shall review completed and signed time reports and cause them to be
posted to the appropriate category in the general ledger. The Grantee shall maintain records of
employee payroll and benefits and shall post this information to the appropriate category in the
general ledger. The Grant Manager shall ensure that all payments are on a timely basis.

26.7. Reimbursements. On a monthly ha.si.s, the t'lmnlee .shall .siihmit de-scriptinn of Gmnt activities,
in a format as required by the State. Should the Grantee show a profit for any month, the Grantee
shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent reimbursement requests. The Grantee shall
agree to provide information in addition to the monthly narrative at such times and in such manner
•as the State may require, and to prepare any ijcports which may be requested by the Slate including
but not limited to a final or termination report if operations cease.

26.8. Maintenance of Records. The Grantee shall keep-and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The Grantee
shall maintain, and make available to the State and the FTA, records relating to complaints and
comments received from the public. In the 'event the Slate disputes the Grantee's operations or
records as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution shajl rest with the State.

26.9. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Dale and the Completion Date, and for a period of
three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of resolution of all matters relating to this
Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as often
as the State or the FTA may demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State and the FTA or
their designees all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permit the Slate and the FTA to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, grants, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, Data (as defined in G-I
section 9.1) and other information relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in
this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons', natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by. or
under common ownership with, the entity identified as the Grantee in 1.3 of G-I.

26.10. i ndcpcndcnt Audit. The Grantee shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State may require, for any part of the project upon demand.
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Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the Grant Budget- for that specific
purpose.

26.10.1 In the event the audit reveals that monies arc due and owing to ihc-Statc from the
Grantee, for whatever reasons, the GrantM shall pay to the State such sums within thirty
(30) days of the audit date.

26.1 1. The Grantee shall submit quarterly performance, drug and alcohol, and charter .activity reports
within 30 days of the end of each quarterjand shall submit any forms, information or reports
required by the State to complete the FTA's|National Transit Database (NTD) reporting.

26.12. General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS). The Grantee shall generate and keep updated General
Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for .reporting to the National Transit
Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the State upon request.

A.l 0. Amend G-1 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Section 27:

27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL
apply to all equipment and real property
through this or other Agreements between

PROPERTY." The following terms and conditions
purchased in whole or in part with funds provided
the State and the Grantee:

27.1. AH procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.1F and
future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts 661 and 663.

27.2. All vehicles shall be purchased by the State unless the Grantee has received prior approval from
the State to procure vehicles.

27.3. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred (S500) ̂ r unit shall be purchased by
the Grantee subject to the prior approval of the Stale.

27.4. Title to all project equipment funded or otherwise provided by the Grantee shall be in the name
of the Grantee; provided, however, that the Grantee shall give the State a security interest in all
such equipment at the time of purchase and shall execute financing statements and do all other
acts necessary or useful to the perfection of that interest and the renewal thereof. In connection
with the purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant to this Agreement, the Grantee shall give the
State a security interest in the motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take all steps
necessary to protect the State's security interest, including taking steps to identify the State as a
lien holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

27.5. In the event that this Agreement is terminated, all-project equipment and property become the
property of the State and it is understood and, agreed that legal title to such equipment shall be
transferred to the State as soon as feasible. Project equipment will be disposed of in accordance
with FTA Circular 9040.1G and the State Management Plan unless written approval is received
from the State.

A.tl. Amend G-l by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing of
(all Project Equipment and Real Property involved in this Agreement. The Grantee shall submit
"to the Stale a certification that the Project Equipment and Real Property as referenced in Section
27, is still being used in accordance with th|c tcnns of the Agreement. The inventory listing and
equipment certification shall be supplied to (he State on an annual basis beginning June 30, 2024

[year]- - I

A.12. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:
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29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. The GranJec shall be responsible for the maintenance
and repair of all equipment used in thc| Services described in Exhibit D. The Grantee shall
maintain all such equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and mechanical soundness. The
Grantee shall certify that a proper maintenance plan that meets or exceeds the original equipment
manufacturer's preventive maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must
be approved by the. Grantee's Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair and physical
improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Grantee and at a location
specincd by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the State of any changes in this location. The
Grantee further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any physical irrtprovement to equipment as
requested-by the Slate. The State, the and/or their dcsignees shall have the right to conduct
periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper maintenance and repair.

I  1 .
A.13. Amend C-I by adding "REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS" as section 30:

i

30. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. i Thc Grantee shall maintain a complete and up to date
record of all motor vehicle repairs and shall make such records available to the State and the FTA
upon demand. I

A.M. Amend G-! by adding "VEHICLE STORAGE" as section 31:

31. VEHICLE STORAGE As applicable, with respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or
part under this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Grantee shall park or garage
each vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for each vehicle. The

Grantee shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in such a manner that its
daily operations are not impaired or curtailed by conditions of weather or any other
circumstances. The Grantee shall notify the State of the location of the parking or garaging site
and any relocation.

A.IS, Amend G-I by adding "TRAINING AND

32. TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. The State may require participation in training courses
determined to be essential to FTA program managcnicnt in this grant period and may require •
participaliun in such training programs as^ it deems necessary by drivers and other employees
involved in the transportation of the public. Training may include defen.'^ive rlriving, pa.w.nger

cihc(gcn'..y piuccduics and pciiodic icfrcshcr training every three (3) years. The
Grantee agrcc.s that the State shall have the right to review the perfbnm.incc of all drivers who are
employed in connection with this Agrectncnl, and to disallow the use of any driver whose
performance as a driver Is determined to be unsatisfactory by the State.

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 33:

33. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. As applicable, alt project equipment shall be inspected and
certified by the Department of Safety and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards and Federal Motor-Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United Stales
Department of Transportation, and by ihcjNcw Hampshire Department of Safety under RSA ,
266:72-a, in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

33.1. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide the State with full, and prompt written notification
of any accident involving any vehicle^ used in its Services, in addition, the Grantee shall be
responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law.

33.2. The Grantee shall submit to the State by February 15 of each year a report covering the

previous year (January I through December 31), summarizing the results of its alcohol
misuse prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall be in
compliance with 49 CFR Part 655.

DRIVER REVIEW" ah .sccrinn 32:
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.  33.3. The Grantee, shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset
\  Management or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by

NHDOT for compliance purposes, j
*  I V,

A.I7. Amend G-l by adding "SERVICE LIMITATIONS" as section 34:

34. SERVICE LIMITATIONS. The Granteejshall not engage in the provision Services other than
those described in Exhibit B, or outside the service area described in Exhibit B, without the
written consent of the Slate and, as applicable, without obtaining the appropriate operating
authority. The Grantee shall not engage in'charter or school bus operations except as permitted
by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605, respeciivelyi

A.I8. Amend G-l by adding "GRArfTEE REPRESENTATIONS" as section 35:
35. GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS. ThcjCrantce warrants that with respect to the Services to

be performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals which arc required by any law.
order or regulation of any authority, slate or federal, or which may be necessary for the
performance of the Services hcrcundcr. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Services shall be qualified to perform such Services and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Services under all applicable laws.

A.19. Amend G-I by adding "LABOR PROVISIONS" as section 36:

36. LABOR PROVISIONS. The Grantee agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions of the Unified
Protective Arrangement, Section 5333(b) of 49 USC 53 or as amended, incorporated herein for
the protection of the employees of any employer providing transportation services assisted by
this Agreement, and the employees of any other surface transportation providers in the
transportation service area identified in Exhibit B.

1

A.2p. Amend G-I by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 37;

37. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Grantee is conceived or
first actually reduced to practice in thej course of or under this grant, which invention,
improvement or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the United Stales or any foreign.
countr>', the Grantee chall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed report. The rights
and responsibilities of the Grantee and the Stale with respect to such invention, improvement, or
discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies,and any waiver thereof. j

A.21. Amend G-l by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 38:

38. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee,
to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or
person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee, any fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the
award or making of this Agreement. For brwch or violation of this warranty, the Slate shal l have
the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from the
Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission,

'  percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.



VNA@HCS, Tnc.
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. The Grantee, VNA @ HCS, Inc., (hereinafter the "Grantee") shall provide the following public
transit service(s)

2. Fixed route, demand-responsive, and/br route deviation public transit services in the City of
Keenc region, as detailed in the "Project Description" of the Grantee's application to the New
Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail and Transit (hereinafter "the State") for
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5311 funding, including a map of semce areas and
fare structure.

3. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the public transit services provided by Grantee
pursuant to this agreement: i

a. The State may require the Grantee to provide additional transportation services or to
reduce transportation services provided.under this Grant. Any alterations to such
transportation services shall be subrnitted In writing by the Department to the Grantee.
The Grantee shall implement the alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different
limeframe is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.

b. The Grantee may request to revise transportation services, as submitted in the Grantee's
grant application to the State, to add] reduce, or adjust transportation services provided
under this Grant. Any alterations to such transportation services, including alterations for
the provision of service to.special events, shall be requested in writing by the Grantee to .
the State for approval at least 30 days in advance. Revisions subject to a public comment
period shall be requested at least 60 days in advance. Upon approval of the State, the
Grantee shall implement any alterations within thirty (30) days unless a diffetciil
timcframe is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.

c. The Grantee shall not change, add, or delete any route or make any fare, service, or
operating schedule adjustments without the prior written agreement of the State, except in
an emergency situation, in which casc lhc Grantee shall notify the State no later than the
next working day following the day of such changes. Such emergency changes will be
valid for a maximum of five days; thereafter, the written approval of the Slate shall be
required to continue such emergency changes.

d. All project vehicles, including those federally funded vehicles outlined in Exhibit D,
Project Equipment, as identified by their Vehicle Identification Numbers, as well as any
additional vehicles utilized for the project, shall be used in accordance with'all applicable
Federal and Slate laws as well as State requirements.



VNA@HCS, Inc.
EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

1. The Grant price, as defined in Section 1.8 ofjthe General Provisions, is the FTA Section 531 1
portion of the eligible project cost. Federal funds are granted as follows:

i SFV2024 SFY 2025

FTA Section 5311 1

Administration 1  S90.000 $90,000

Capital Preventive Maintenance j  S22.000 $22,000

Capital ADA 1  $14,000 $14,000

Operating 1  $1 16,000 SI 16,000

Total Federal Funds 1  $242,000 $242,000
1

1

Total Two-Year Grant Funds i  $484,000 .

a. Funds are contingent upon Fet era! and State appropriations.

2.

3.

4.

Not les-s than fourteen days prior to the submission of the Grantee's first request for FTA
Section 531 1 reimbursement, the Grantee shall submit to the State a budget incorporating all
funds, to be expended in the provision of services pursuant to this contract. Budget revisions
may be made with written approval of the State.

The Grantee may seek reimbursement only for eligible expenses listed in the budget and
detail-of-cost form provided.by the State, with the exception of funds specifically reserved, if
any, and identified in "Specifically Programrncd Funds," at the end of this Exhibit.

At the sole discretion of the Department, the prantee may carry forward any unexpended
portion of the federal funds included in the Grant Price to a subsequent contract, if any,
between the State and the Grantee.

\



VNA@HCS, INC.
EXHIBIT D

VEHICLE LIST

Transit Vehicles; 7

2016 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger Bus j 1FDFE4FS3GDC5666I

2016 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger Bus IFDFE4FS4GDC56670

2016 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger Bus 1FDFE4FS5GDC56662

2017 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger | IFDFE4FS3HDC33480

2017 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger | IFDFE4FS7HDC33479

2021 Ford E450SD IFDFE4FN0MDCI7550

FORD Mobility VAN. Transit 350 HD | 1 FDVU4XG2MKA23659



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFiCATE

1. David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State ofthe State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that VNA AT HCS. INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 18, 1981.1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Sutc's officclhavc been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 67798

Certificate Number: 0006194140

Op
<9

Sa.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day'of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of.Stalc



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

David Therrfen , hereby certify thai:
{Name ol the elected OfOcer of the CorporatlonyLLC; cannot be conlfact signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Clerlc/Secroiary/Officer of VNA ai HCS
(Corporation/LLG Name)

2. The following is a tnja copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Oirectors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Mav 12.2022 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: Thai

(Dale)

Maura McQueenev. CEO

(Name and Tine of Contract Signatory) i
(may f'ist more than orle person)

is duly authorized on behalf of VNA at HCS 1 to enter Into contracts or agreements with the Slate
(Name of Corporalton/ LiLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its, agencies or departments arid further Is authorized lb execute any and. all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and ariy amendments, revisions, or modillcatlorts thereto, wftich
may In his/her judgment be desiraible or necessary to effect the purpose of this vole.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains (n full force and effect as of the
dale of the contract/contract amendment, to" which this certificate is attached. Hiis authority remains valid for
thirty (30) from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that (i is understood that the Slate of
New Harrjpshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currenily occupy the
posMlon(s) indcated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority ol any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly .stated herein.

Dated: ̂ lt,J
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: David Therrien
Title:

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (lut/DOrrvrr)

2/24/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIRCATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,' EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, j

ORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the po(lcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be ernforsed.
JBROGATION IS WAIVED, sub{ec1 lo the terms and conditions of llie policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

PRODUCER

Dowd Agencies, LLC
14 Bobala Road
Holyoke MA 01040

l lftMWpe- BR.1201657

CMane LaFleche

413-437-1062 lfwc.Mov
A^D^ss: dlafleche€ldowd.com

iNSURERfS) AFFOROPSQ COVERAGE NAtCF

PISURCR A Phlladeiohia Insurance Comoanles

MSUrtEO V HOMEHEAJW
Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc.
and'VNAalHCS. Inc.
PO Box 564
312 Marlboro Street
Keene NH 03431

PCSURER B Philadelohia Indemnllv Insurance Comoanv 16058

INSURER C

PSURERO

KSURERC ,

■rsuRGRF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 146942716 REVISION NUMBER:

wsn
SJS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY TTIAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED'TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NQTWITHSTANOING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDmON|OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT Wim RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVEIbEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

VoUCVEF?"
ITO

POLtCVEXP
uuusTYPEOFMSUAANCE .ll'.VJ.I POUCVNUMOER

couuenaAL ceneral uab jot*

CLAIMS-UAOE B OCCUR

GEra AOflfiEOATe UNIT APPUES PER;

□  IBPOLtCV I LOC

OTHER:

PHPK2S05760
WWOOnrvYYI

1/4/2023

(muoorrrm

1/4/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE
DAUaCE TOAErTTEC
PRgNtSeS oeeuTTtfyMt

ueo gyp iA/tt ex*

PERSONAL i ADV INJURY

general AGGREGATE

PROOUCTS • COMP/OP AGO

COtiiaiNEO SINGLE UUfT
iEui^asu-;

11.000.000

(100.000

S 5.000

11.000.000

% 3.000.000

> 3.000.000

AUTQUOaiLe UABOiTY

ANY AUTO

PHPK25057C3 1/4/2023. 1/4/7024 (1.000.000

BOOCLV INJURY (P« parMK)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
MIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NLPLLRWNtU
AUTOS ONLY

OOOLY OLAJRV (Pw KddM)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPv

UUARELIA LIAe

EXCESS UAB

rvvuR

CLAaJS-MAOC

PHUB847I9C 1/4/2023 1/4/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE (4.000.000

AGGREGATE

OeO I ^ I RETEMTION( ifLnrxi.
T?a—
STATUTE

rsnr
I EB

WORKERS COKPENSATtOM
AND EMPLOYERS' UAfitUTY

ANYPROPRIETORfPARTNER/EXECUnVE
OPFICERMEUBER EXCLU0E07
(MMtdatorrMHH)
B ML PMOrta undw
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATXIWS .

Y * W

□ E.L EACH ACCIOEHT

E.L. DISEASE • £A EMPLOYEE

E.L DISEASE • POLICY UUlT

^p<«>aionM LIsbBty PHPK2505760 1/4/2023 1/4/2024 EacnOalmLMt
AegrcsM

1,000.000
3.000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPCRATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO ifii. AdtfUonM Ramtflit Sch*4ul*, nor M •nACM N mora tptca Is icquVsS)
Cenincate holder is an additional insured, per vmtien contract.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Slate of NH
Department of Transportation
PO Box 403
7 Hazen Drive
Concord NH 03302-0483

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION .DATE THEREOF,' NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOROEORCPRESENTATTVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03)
I  01988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORO



JKCORty CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
0AT6 (W^ffiOrtTirY)

7/19/2022 '

THIS Certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certircath holder, this
CERTIBCATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, |eXTEN0 OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIRCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. |
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDmONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ie$) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endors<
II SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.' A statement c

PRODUCER

Dowd Aoencies, LLC
14 Bobala Road
Hoiyoke MA 01040

I IfiPfwf-RR.170IR57

Samf*" Jessica Reld. CISR. CPIA
413-137-1070 1 riuc.Nor413-437.1470

ireidiaWowd.com

IKSUHERrSI APFOROrNC COVERAGE NAIC •

iersuRER A: Philadeiohia Insurance Comoanles

INSURED HOMEHEA4)3
Home Healthcare. Hospice & Community Services, Inc.
and VNA al HCS. Inc. ^
PO Box 564
312 Marilxiro Street

Keene NH 03431

wsuRER 0: Philadetphla indemnity Insurance Comoany 16056'

' wsuRER c: AUantlc Charter Insurance Comoany 44326

' INSURER O:

MSUflCRE:

MSURERPr

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1690565965 REVISION NUMBER:

Ksr
JJfl.

THIS IS TO certify THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICV PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY FtEOUlREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT'WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUClES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUClES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

pot»cre*pCW2M2U POLtCTEPP
TYPE OF IHSUAANCE rypiirnn

COHMenCIAI. GENERAL LIAeuTY

I CLAIMS^AAOe OCCUR

0£kv AOGRgOATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PO-C* CZl JECT B LOO
OTHER:

POUCTNUMeeR

PHPK23e5C30

tMMrPOAYYY)

1/4/2022

fUMiOOnfYVYI

1/4/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE

TSaKBTTDTtERTEO
PREMISES lEii nenirfuvMl

MED EXP (Nty otw p»nen)

PERSONAL a AOV PUURY

GENERAL aOGREGATE

PROOUCTS • COMPAJP AGO

$ 1.000.000

S 100.000

tS.IX»

ti.ooo.ooo

13.000.000

13,000,000

AUTOMOOU LIAOajTV

ANY AUTO

nwNpn

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

n inc2Df.sc34

RCHEmn.En

AUTOS
N0N-O«VNE0

AUTOS ONLY

1/4/202 1/4/2023
COMBiNEO SINGLE LlMlf
Itk tcMerti

<1,000,000

800I.Y INJURY {Pn pmpn)

BOOLY PLAIRY (Po ooeitfeM)

■PHBPCmVTOnBE

UUSRELLAUAB

excess UAB

OED II

OCCUR

CLAMS-UAOE

PHUB7969I6 1/4/2022 1/4/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE <4.000.000

AGGREGATE

RCTENTiONi innnn

WOnxERS COMPCNSATtON
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY
ANVPROPRCrofVPARTNEnEXECUnVE
OFFICERMEuaER EXCLUOEOT
(MMAlonr In NH)
H yt«; imofcp
oEscripton of operations e«iow

WCA00S39S11

□
7/1/2022 7/1/2023 ^*n/T6

OTH.
.ea_

E.L EACHACCiOENT <1.000.000

E.L DISEASE • £A EMPLOYEE <1.000.000

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT <1.000.000

CXnwcrt < OfAc«r« LlMUty
EinqipinMN PrwScn Lteony
PVkiiiAry LkMiy

PHSDIEMeOI 1/4/2022 1/4/2023 <20.000.00 RMcmlan
<25.000.00 RMenllon
<0

SS.000.000
$5,000,000
$1,000,000

DESCRIPTION DP OPERATIONS ' LOCATIONS I VEMCLCS (ACORO 101, AMUonol RnmtU SdipAll*, Ri«r tCUelwe » mar* spM* r*qulr««)
Cenificale holder Is an addiiional insured, per vvritten contract. I

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH
Department of Transportation
PO Box 483"
7 Hazen Drive
Conford NH 03302-0463

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTMOnZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03)

I  C 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORO



Cenificniions and Assurances Fiscal Year 2023

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2023 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternaie to providing Ceriificaiions and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Nanicof Applicant: VNA at HCS

The Applicanl certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: {check here) X . .

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Every Applicant

Ciitcgorv

01 Certifications and Assurances Required o

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula GiYints for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guidcway Capital Invesimeni Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

Gt^ants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission

Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs

Certification



Ceitillcalions and Assurances

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabiliiics
Programs

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastniclure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safely Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

IS Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybcrsecurily Certincation fur Rail Rulling Slock and
Operations

20 j'ribal Transit Programs

Emergency Relief Program

CRKTIFICATIONS AM> ASSUKANCKS SICNATURF. PACR

aitiumatioin of APPLiCAivr

Fiscal Year 2023

Nnmc nf ihc Applic»i)i; VNA at HQS

DY SIGNING BGLOW, on twhairofiltc Aiiplicani, t declare lhai il has duly aulhorizcd n»o lo nwkc ihcsc
Gcriirteaiions and AssumiKCS and bind iu compliance. Thus, il agrees 10 comply with all fcrkral Inw-s. rcgulalions,

niul rccjiiifcincms, follow npplicahic federal guidance, and comply wilh ihe Ccnificalioiui and Assurances »s
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to cj>ch application its Authorized Rcprcscnlaiiw makes to the Kcdcnil
Transit Adminisirjtion (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, irrespective of whcllKr the individual that acted on his or
her Applicant's bciiaif continues lu rcpicscnl it.

The Ccrtificaiibn.s and Assurariccs the Applicant selects apply to each Award for which it itow .seeks, or may
later seek fcdcnil a.ssistante to Itc awarded by FTA during the federal fiscal year.

The Applicam afllrms the iruilifuincss and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it ius selected in the
statements submitted with this documctu and any oilier submission made to FTA. and acknowledges thai the
Program Fraud Civil Kcmcdics Ael of 31 Li.S.C. § 3S0I je/ and implementing U.S. DGT regulations.
'T'rogrnm Fraud Civil Rcnwdics." 49 CFR part 31, apply to any certification. a.ssuronce or subniissioii made lo
FTA. The criminal provisioas of IS U.S.C. $1001 apply many cenificotion, as.surance. or.subini.s.siun made in
cunncciioii with a federal public transponalion program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute



CeniHcalions and Assurances Fiscal Year 2023

li>tij;niiig Uii.< documcnl, t declare uitdcr ponalilcs of perjury ihal ihc rorcgoing CcniriraiKtn5 and As5nrancc.^, and ■
onyoJlicf siaicmcn«5 made by mc on behalf of »hc Applicani arc true and acmratc.

Sirminrrr On..: 02 01 2023 . ^

Maura McQueeney
Nimr Aulbor«7tfd RrpjTsVn.aiivc «>f Appliram

•



FFY 2022 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

I acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2022 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

zo Zz^

VNA at HCS

Name of Authorized Official

Date

Signature



iiA. ofptPTwynrof ititoo

Office of Labor.ManaPgment Seandards

Special Warranty Arrangement

For Application to Other Than Urbanized and Over-the-Road Bus Accessibility'

Projects

PURSUANT TO SECTION 5333(b) OF

TITLE 49 OF THE U.S. CODE. CHAPTER 53

January 3)2011

The following language shall be made part of the contract of assistance by reference in the Federal Transit Administration's Master

Agreement as signed by the grantee;

The terms and conditions set forth below shall apply for the protection of the transportation-related employees in die

transportation service area of the Project As a precondition of the release of assistance by the Grantee/State Agency to any

Recipient under the grant, the Grantee shall bind the Recipient to these obligations by incorporating this arrangement into the

contract of assistance between the Grantee and the Recipient(s). by reference. If a Grantee fails to comply with the terms of the

Warranty and fails to bind a Recipient as a precortdition to the release of funds, (he Grantee will be a guarantor of the required

protections and the Grantee will be required to act as if it were the Recipient of funds unless and until the Grantee is able to secure

the retroactive agreement of the Recipient to be bound by the terms of the Warranty.

These protective arrangements are intended (or the benefit of transit employees in the service area of (he project, who are

considered as third-party beneficiaries to the employee protective arrangements incorporated by referenced in the grant contract

between the U.S. Department of Transponation and the.Grantee, and the parties to the contract so signify by executing that

contract. Transit employees are also third party beneficiaries to the protective arrangements incorporated in subsequent contracts

of assistance between the Grantee and any Recipient. Employees, or their representative, may assert claims with respect to the

protective arrangements under this provision. This clause creates no independent cause of action against the United States

Government.

The term "service area." as used herein, includes the geographic area over which the Project is operated and the area whose

population is served by the Project, including adjacent areas'offected by the Project. The term "Union." as used herein, shall refer to

any labor organization representing employees providing public transportation services in the service area of a Project assisted

. under the grant. The term "employee." as used herein, shall include indmduals who may or may not be represented by a Union.

The term "Recipient," as used herein, shall refer to any employer(s) receiving transportation assistance under the grant. 1 he term

"Grantee," as used herein, shall refer to the applicant for assistance: a Grantee which rece^es assignee Is also a Recipient.

Where the Qepartment of Labor (the Department) deems it necessary to modify the requirements of this Special Warranty

Arrangement so that a particular Grantee or Recipient can continue to satisfy the requirements of the statute, the Oepartrnent will

issue a supplementary certification letter setting forth the aliemativc'provisions to be included in the contract of assistance
between the Grantee and FTA, by reference. These terms will be made'binding upon the particular Grantee or Recipient, along with

these terms and conditions, for each subsequent grant of assistance until withdrawn In writing by the Department.

(1) The Project shall be carried out in such a manner and upon such terms and conditions as will not adversely affect employees of

the Recipient and of any other surface public transportation provider in the transportation service area of the Project. It shall be an

obligation of (he Recipient to assure that any and all transportadon services, assisted by the Projea arecontracted for and operated

in such a manner that they do not impair the rights and interests of affected employees. The term "Project." as used herein, shall

not be limited to the particular facility, service, or operation assisted by Federal funds, but shall include any changes, whether

organizational, operational, technological, or otherwise, which are a result of the assistance provided. The phrase "as a result of the

Project," shall, when used in this arrangement, include events related to the Project occurring in anticipation of. during, and

subsequent to the Project and any program of efficiencies or economies related thereto; provided, however, that volume rises and

falls of business, or changes in volume and character of employment brought about soldy by causes other than the Project

(includingany economies or efficiencies unrelated to the Project) are not within the purview of this arrangement.

An employee covered by this arrangement, who is not dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened in his/her position with regard

to employment as a result of the Project, but who is dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened solely b^ause of the total or

partial termination of the Project or exhaustion of Project funding shall not be deemed eligible for a dismissal or displacement

allowance within the meaning of paragraphs (S) and (7) of this arrangement.



(2) Where employees of a Recipient are represented for collective bargaining purposes, all Project services provided by that

Recipient shall be provided under and in accordance with any collective bargaining agreement applicable to such employees which

is then in effect. ThisArrahgcmcntdocsnot create any collective bargaining relationship where one does not already exist or

between any Recipient and the employees of another employer. Where the Recipient has no collective bargaining relationship with

the Unions representing employees in the service area, the Recipient will not take any action which impairs or interferes with the

rights, privileges, and benefits and/or the preservation or continuation of the collective bargaining rights of such employees.

(3) All rights, privileges, and benefits (including pension rights and benefits) of employees covered by this arrangement (including

employees having already retired) under existing collective bargaining agreements or otherwise.orunder any revision or renewal
[  y

thereof, shall be preserved and continued; provided, however, thai such rights, privileges and benefits which'are'nci foreclosed

from further bargaining under applicable law or contract may be modified by collective bargaining and agreement by the Recipient

and the'Union involved to substitute other rights, privileges and benefits. Unless otherwise provided, nothing in this arrangement
shall be deemed to resirici any nghts the Recipient may otherwise have to direct the working forces and manage its business as it

deemed best, in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

(4) The collective bargaining rights of employees covered by this arrangement,.including the right to arbitrate labor disputes and to

maintain union security and checkoff arrangements, as provided by applicable laws, policies and/or existing collective bargaining
agreements, shall be preserved and continued. Provided, however, that this provision shall not be Interpreted so as to require.ihe

Recipient to retain any such rights which exist by virtue of a collective bargaining agreement after such agreement is no longer in

effect.

The Recipient agrees that it will bargain collectively with the Union or otherwise arrange for the continuation of collective

bargaining, and that it will enter into agreements with the Union or arrange for such agreements to be entered into, relative to all

subjects which arc or may be proper subjects of collective bargaining. II, at any time, applicable law or contracts permit or grant to

employees covered by this arrangement the right to utilize any economic measures, nothjng in this arrangement shall be deemed

to foreclose the exercise of such right.

(5)(a) The Recipient shall provide to all affeaed employees »xty (60) days' notice of intended actions which may result in
displacements or dismissals or rearrangements of the working lorcesjasa result of the Project, in thc'case of employees
represented by a Union, such notice shall be provided by certified mail through their representatives. The notice shall contain a full

and adequate statement of (he (xoposed changes, and an estimate of the number of employees affected by the intended changes,

and the number and classifications of any jobs within the jurisdiction and control of the Recipient, includit^g those in the

employment ot any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21). available to be lilled by such affected employees.
-  j _ .

(S)(b) The proceduresof tiiis subparagraph shalfapply to cases where notices involve employees represented by a Union for

collective bargaining purposes. At the request of either the Recipient or the representatives of such employees, negotiations for the

purposes of reaching agreement with respect to the application of the terms and conditions of this arrangement sftall commence

immediately. These negotiations shall include determining the selection of forces from among the mass transportation employees

who may be affected as a result of the Project, to establish which such employees shall be offered employment for which they are

qualified or can be trained. If no agreement isreached within twenty (20) days from the commencement of negotiations, any party

to the dispute may submit the matter to dispute settlement procedures in accordance with paragraph (15) of this arrangement.

Unless the parties otherwise mutually agree in writing, no change in operations, services, facilities or equipment within the

purview of this paragraph (5) shall occur until after either: 1] an agreement with respect to the'application of theterrns and

conditions of this arrangement to the intended chdnge(s) is reached; 2) the decision of the arbitrator has been rendered pursuant

to this subparagraph (b); or 3) an arbitrator selected pursuant to Paragraph (IS) of this arrangement determines that the intended

change(s) may be instituted prior to the finalization of implementirtg arrangements.

(5)(c) In the event of a dispute as to whether an intended change vrithin the purview of this paragraph (5) may be instituted at the

end of the 60-day notice period and before an implementing agieemeht is reached or a final arbitration decision is rendered

pursuant to subparagraph (b), any involved party may immediately submit that issue to arbitration under paragraph (15) of this

arrangement. In any such arbitration, the arbitrator shall rely upon the standards and criteria utilized by the Surface Transportation

Board (and its predecessor agency, the Interstate Commerce Commission) to address the "preconsummaUon" issue in cases

involving employee protections pursuant to 49 U.S.C. Section 11326 (or its predecessor, Section S(2)(f) of the Interstate Corhmerce

Act. as amended). If the Recipient demonstrates, as a threshold matter in any such arbitration, that the intended action is a

trackage rights, lease proceeding or similar transaction, and not a merger, acquisition, consolidation; or other similar transaction, ^

the burden shall (hen shift to the involved labor organization(s) to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced above,

the intended action should riot be permitted to be instituted prior to the effective date of a negotiated or arbitrated implementing

agreement. If the Recipient fails to dcmonstQte that the intended action is a trackage rfghis, lease proceeding, or similar

transaction, it shall be the burden of the Recipient to prove thai under (he standards and criteria referenced above, the intended -

action should be permitted to be instituted prior to (he effective date of a negotiated or arbitrated implementing agreement. For

purposes of any such arbitration, the time period within which the parties are to respond to the list of potential arbitrators



submined by the American Arbitration Association Service shall be five (5),days, the notice of hearing may be given orally or by
Facsimile, the hearing will bo held promptly, the award of the arbitrator shall be rendered promptly and, unless otherwise agreed to

by the parties, no later than fourteen (14) days from the date of closing the hearings, with Ttve (5) additional days for mailing if. „

posihearing briefs are requested by either party. The intended change shall not be instituted during the pendency of any
arbitration proceedings under this subparagraph (c).

(5)(d) If an intended change within the purview of this paragraph (5) is instituted before an implementing agreemeni.is reached or a

final arbitration decision is rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b), all employees affected shall be kept financially whole, as if the

noticed and implemented action has not taken place, from the time they are affected until the effective date of an implementing

agreement or final arbitration decision. This protection shall be in addition to the protective period defined in paragraph (14) of this-
arrangement, which period shall begin on the effective date of the implementing agreement or final arbitration decision rendered

pursuant to subparagraph (b).

An employee selecting, bidding on, or hired to nil any position established as a result of a noticed and implemented action prior to

the consummation of an implementing agreement or final arbitration decision shall accumulate no benefits under this

arrangement as a result thereof during that period prior to (he consummation of an implementing agreement or final arbitration
decision pursuant to subparagraph (b).

(G}(a) wt>enever an employeej retained in service, recalled to service, or employed by the Recipient pursuant to paragraphs (5). (7)'

(e), or (18) hereof is placed in a worse position with respect to compensation as a.resuU of the. Project, the employee shall be

considered a 'displaced employee", and shall be paid a monthly 'displacement allowance" to be determined in accordance with

this paragraph. Said displacement allowance shall be paid each displaced employee during the protective period so longas the

employee is unable, in the exercise of his/her seniority rights, to obtain a position producing compensation-equal to or exceeding

the compensation the employee received in the position from which the employee was dlsplac^, adjusted to reflect subsequent

general wage adjustments, including cost of living adjustments where provided for.

(6)(b) The displacement allowance shall be a monthly allowance determined by computing the total compensation received by the

employee, including vacation allowances and monthly compensation guarantees, and higher total time paid for during the last

twelve (12) months in which the employee performed compensated service more than fifty per centum of each such months, based
'  I

upon the employee's normal vrork schedule, immediately preceding the date of his/her displacement as a result of the Project, and

by dividing separately the total compenution and the total time paid for by twelve, thereby producing the average monthly

compensation and the average monthly time paid for. Such allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage

adjustments, including cost of living adjustments where provided for.jlf the displaced employee's compensation in his/her current
pnsirlnn in any mnnrh'riimng his/har prntertive perind than rh«» afnresairi average rompensation (adjirsred tr> reflect

' subsequent general wage adjustments, irtcluding cost of living adjustments where provided for), the employee shall be paid the

difference, less compensation for any time lost on account of voluntary absences to the extent that the employee is not available

for service equivalent to his/her average monthly time, but the employee shall be compensated in addition thereto at the rate of

the current position for any time worked in excess of the average monthly time paid for. If a displaced employee fails to exercise

his/her.seniority rights to secure another position to which the employee is entitled under the then existing collective bargaining

agreement, and which*carries a wage rate and compensaUo'n exceeding that of the position which the employee elects to'retain,

the employee shall thereafter be treated, for the purposes of this paragraph, as occupying the position the ̂ ployee elects to
decline.

(6)(c) The displacement allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the displaced

employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in accordancc.with any labor agreement applicable to his/her

employment.

(7)(a] Whenever any employee is (aid off or otherwise deprived of employment as a result of (he Project, in accordance with any

collective bargaining agreement applicable to his/her employment, the employee shall be considered a "dismissed employee' and

shall be paid a monthly dismissal allowance to t>e determined in accordance with this p>aragraph. Said dismissal allowance shall

Hrst be paid each dismissed employee on the thirtieth (30th) day following iheday on which the employee is 'dismissed' and shall

continue during the protective period, as follow:

Employee's length of service

prior to advprv pffnci PPfiod of protection

L day to 6years equivalent period

6 years or more 8 years

The monthly dismissal allowance shall be equivalent to one-twelfth (l/l2th).of the total compensation received by the employee in

the last twelve (12) months of his/her employment in which the employee performed compensation service more than fifty per

centum of each such month based on the employee's normal work schedule to the date on which the employee was first deprived



of employment as a result of lt>e Project. Such allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage adjustments,

including cost of living adjustments where provided for

(7)(b} An employee shall be regarded as deprived of employment and entitled to a dismissal allowance when the position the

employee holds is abolished as a result ol the Project, or when the position the employee holds is not abolished but the empioVee

loses that position as a result of the exercise of seniority rights by an employee whose position is abolished as a result of the Project

or as a result of the exercise of seniority rights by other employees brought about as a result of the Project, and the iemployee is

unable to obtain another position, either by the exercise of the employee's seniority rights, or through the Recipient, in accordance

with subparagraph (e). in the absence of proper notice followed by an agreement or decision pursuant to pamgraph (S) hereof, no

employee who has been deprived of employment as a result of the Project shall be required to exercise his/her seniority rights to

secure another position in order to qualify for a dismissal allowance hereunder.

(7)(c) Each employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall keep the Recipient informed as to his/her current address and the

current name and address of any other person by whom the employ^ may be regularly employed, or if the employee is self*

employed.

(7)(d} The dismi^l allowance shall be paid to the regularly assigned incumbent of the position abolished, if the position of an

employee is abolished when the employee is absent from service, the employee will be entitled to the dismissal allowance when

the employee is available for service. The employee temporarily filling said position at the time it was abolished will be given a

dismissal allowance on the basis of that position, until the regular employee is available for service, and thereafter shall revert to

the employee's previous status and will be given the protections of the agreement in said position, if any are due him/her.

(7)(e) An employee rec^ving a dismissal allowance shall be subject to call to return to service by the employee's former employer;
rvotiHcation shall be in accordance with the terms of the then-existing collective bargaining agr^ment if the employee is

represented by a union. Prior to such call to return to wor1( by his/herjemployer, the employee may be required by the Recipient to
accept reasonably comparable employment for which the employee is physically and mentally qualified, or for which the employee

can become.qualified after a reasonable training or retraining period] provided it does not require a change in residence or infringe
upon the employment rights of other employees under then-existing'collective bargaining agreements.

(7)(f) When an employee who is receiving a dismissal allowance agairj commences employment in accordance with subparagraph
(e) above, said allowance shall cease while the employee issoreemployed.and the period of time during which the employee is so

reemployed shall be deducted from the total period for which the employee is entitled to receive a dismissal allowance. During the

lime of such reemployment, (he employee shall be entitled to the protections of this arrangement to the extent they are applicable.

(7)(g} The dismissal allowance of any employee who is otheKvise employed shall be reduced to the extent that the employee's
combined monthly earnings from such other employment or self-employment, any benefits received from any unemployment

insurance law, and his/her dismissal allowance exceed the amount upon which the employee's dismissal allowance is based. Such

employee, or his/her union representative, and the Recipient shall agree upon a procedure by which the Recipient shall be kept

currently informed of the comings of such employee in employment other than with,the employee's former employer, including

self^mployment. and the benefits received.

(7)(h) The dismissal allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the failure of the employee

without good cause to return to service in accordance with the applicable labor agreement, or to accept employment as provided

under subparagraph (e) above, or in the event of the employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in

accordance with any labor agreement applicable to his/her employm'ent.

(7)(i) A dismissed employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall actively seek and not refuse other reasonably comparable

employment offered him/her for which the employee is physically and mentally qualiHed and does not require a change in the

employee's place of residence. Failure of the dismissed employee to comply with this obligation shall be grounds for

discontinuance of the employee's allowance; provided that said dismissal allowance shall not be discontinue until final

determination is made either by agreement between the Recipient and the employee or his/her representative, or by final

arbitration decision rendere in accordance with paragraph (15) of this arrangement that siich employee did'not comply with this

obligation.

(8) In determining length of service of a displaced or dismissed employee for purposes of this arrangement, such employee shall be

given full service credits in accordance with the records and labor agreements applicable to him/her and the employee shall be
/  . t

given additional service credits for each month in which the employee receives a dismissal or displacement allowance as if the ^

employee were continuing to perform services in his/her former position. '

(9) No employee shall be entitled to either a displacement or dismissal allowance under paragraphs (6) or (7) hereof because of.the

abolishment of a position to which, at some future time, the employee could have bid. been transferred, or promoted.



(10) No employee receiving » dismissal or displacemeni allowance shall be deprived, during ihe employee's protected period, of
any rights, privileges, or benefits attaching to his/her employrnem, including, without limitation, group life insurance,
hospitalizatlon and medical care, free transportation for the employee and the employee's family, sick leave, continued status and
participation under any disability or retirement program, and such other employee benefits as Railroad Retirement. Social Security,
Workmen's Compensation, and unemployment compensation, as well as any other benefits to which the employee may be entitled
under the same conditions and so long as such benefits continue to be accorded to other employees of the bargaining unit, in
active service or furloughed as the case may be.

(11)(a) Any employee covered by this arrangement who is retained in the service of his/her employer, or who is later restored to
service after being entitled to receive a dismissal allowance, and who is required to change the point of his/her employment In
order to retain or secure active employment with the Recipiet>t in accordance with this arrangement, and who is required to move

his/her place of residence, shall be reimbursed for ail expenses of moving his/her household and other personal effects, for the
traveling expenses for the employee and members of.the employee's immediate family, including living expenses for the employee
and the employee's immediate family, and for his/her own actual wage loss during the time necessary for such transfer and for a
reasonable time .thereafter, not to exc^ five (5) worldng days. The exact extent of the responsibility of the Recipient under this
paragraph, and the ways and means of transportation, shall be agreed upon in advance between the Recipient and the affected
employee or the employee's representatives.

(1 l)(b) If any such employee is laid off within three (3) years after changing his/her point of employment in accordance with
paragraph (a) hereof, and elects to move his/her place of residencie back to the original point of employment, the Recipient shall
assume the expenses, losses and costs of moving to the same extent provided in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph (11) and
paragraph (I2)(a) hereof.

(1 l){c) No claim for reimbursement shall be paid under ihe provisions of this paragraph unless such claim is presented to the
Recipient in writing within ninety (90) days after the date on which the expenses were incurred.

(11)(d) Except as otherwise provided in subparagraph (b), changes in place of residwce. subsequent to the Initial changes as a
result of the Project, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniority rights, shall not be
considered within the purview of this paragraph.

(12)(a) The followring conditions shall apply to the extent they are applicable in each instance to any employee who is retained in
the service of the employer (or who is later restored to service ahcr being entitled to receive a dismissal.allowance), who is required
to change the point of his/her employment as a rwuit of the Project, and is thereby required to move his/her place of residence.

If the employee is under a contract to purchase his/her home, the Recipient shall protect the employee against loss under such
contract, and in addition, shall relieve the employee from any further obligation thereunder.

If the employee holds an u'nexpired lease of a dwelling occupied as the employee's horne. ihe Recipient shall protect the employee
from all loss and cost in securing the car^ccllalion of said lease.

(12)(b) NO claim for loss shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such daim is presented to the Recipient in
writing within one year after the effective dale of the change in reside ice.

(12)(c) Should a controversy arise In respect to the value of the home, the loss sustained in its sale, the loss under a contract for
purchase, loss and cost in securirig termination of a lease, or any other question in'connection with these maiters. it shall be
decided through a joint conference between the ernployee, or his/her| union, and the Recipient, in theevcni they are unable to
agree, the dispute or controversy may be referred by the Recipient or the union to a board of competent real estate appraisers
selected in the following manner: one (1) to be selected by the representatives of the employee, and one (1) by the Recipient, and
these two, if unable to agree within thirty (30) days upon the valuation, shall endeavor by agreement with ten (10) days thereafter
to select a third appraiser or to agree to a method by which a third appraiser shall be selected, and failing such agreement, either
party may request the State and local Board of Real Estate Commissioners to designate within ten (10) days a third appraiser,
whose designation will be binding upon the parties and whose jurisdiction shall be limited to determination of the issues raised In
this paragraph only. A decision of a majority of the appraisers shall be required and said decision shall be final, binding, and
conclusive. The compensation and expenses of the neutral appraiser including expenses of the appraisal board, shall be borne
equally by the parties to the procertirigs. All other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them; including the compensation
of the appraiser selected by such party.

(I2)(d) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (ll){b) hereof, changes in place of residence, subsequent to the initial changes as
a result of the Project, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniority rî ts, shall not be



considered within the purview of this paragraph. ^

(12)(e) "Change in residence" means-transfer to a work location which is either (A) outside a radius of twenty (20) miles of the
employee's former work location and farther from the employee's residence than was his/her former work location, or (B) is more

than thirty (30) normal highway route miles from the employee's residence and also farther from his/her residence than was the

employee's former work location.

(13)(a} A dismissed employee entitled to protection under this arrangement may, at the employee's option within twenty-one (21)

days of his/her dismissal, resign and (in lieu of ait other benefits and protections provided in this arrangement) accept a lump sum

payment computed in accordance with section (9) of the Washington| Job Protection Agreement of May 1936;

Length of Service ggparatinn Allowanff

1 year and less than 2 years3 months' pay

2 •" "" 3" 6""

3-"""5 "9""

5 " " " - 10 " 12 " "

10""""15"12""

15 " " over 12 " "

In the case of an employee with less than one year's service, five days' pay, computed by multiplying by 5 the normal daily earnings

(including regularly scheduled overtime, but excluding other overtim'e payments) received by the employee in the position last
occupied, for each month in which the employee performed service, will be paid as the lump sum.

Length of service shall be computed as provided in Section 7(b) of the Washington Job Protection Agreement, as follows:

For the purposes of this arrangement, the length of service of the employee shall be determined from the date the employee last

acquired an employment status with the employing carrier and the employee shall be given credit for one month's service for each

month in which the employee performed any service (in any capacity^ whatsoever) and twelve (12) such months shall be credited as
one year's service. The employment status of an employee shall not be interrupted by furlough Jn instances where the employee

has a right to and does return to service when called. In determining length of service of an employee acting as an ofTicer or other

official representative of an employee organization, the employee will be given credit for performing service while so engaged on

leave of absence from the service of a carrier.

(13)(b) One month's pay shall be computed by multiplying by 30 the riormal daily earnings (including regularly scheduled overtime.

but excluding other overtime payments) received by the employee in

dismissal as a result of the Projea.

the position last occupied prior to time of the employee's

(14) Whenever used herein, unless the context requires otherwise, the term "protective period' means that period of time during

which a displaced or dismiss^ employe is to be provide proteaion h^reund^and extends from the date which an employee

is displaced or dismiss^ to the expiration of six (6) years therefrom, provided, however, that the protective period for any

particular employee during which the employee is entitled to receive'the benefits of these provisions shall not continue fora longer
period following (he date the employee was displaced or dismissed than the employee's length of service, as shown by the records

and labor agreements applicable to his/her employment prior to the date of the employee's displacement or dismissal.

(15){d) In the event that empioyee(s) are represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the

interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisionsof (his arrangement, not otherwise governed by paragraph 12(c), the

Labor-Hanagement Relations Act, as amended, the Railway Labor Act, as amended, or by impasse resolution provisions in a

colleaive bargaining or protective arrangement involving the Redpient and the Union, which cannot be settled by the parties

thereto within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any Tmal and binding

disputes settlement procedure acceptable to the parties. In the event they cannot agree upon such procedure, the dispute, claim,

or grievance may be submitted at the written request of the Recipient or the Union to nnal and binding arbitration. Should the

parties be unable to agree upon the selection of a neutral arbitrator within ten (10) days, any party may request the American

Arbitration Association to furnish, from among arbitrators who are then available to serve, five (S) arbitrators from which a neutral'

arbitrator shall be selected. The parties shall, within five (S) days after the receipt of such list, determine by lot the order of

elimination and thereafter each shall, in that order, alternately eliminate one name until only one name remains. The remaining

person on the list shall be the neutral arbitrator. Unless otherwise provided, in the case of arbitration proceedings, under paragraph

(S) of this arrangement, the arbitration shall commence within fifteen (15) days after selection or appointment of the neutral

arbitrator, and the decision shall be rendered within forty-ftve (45) days after-the hearing of the dispute has been coricluded and the

record closed. The decision shall be final and binding. All the conditions of (he arrangement shall continue to be effective during

the arbitration proceedings.



(15)(b) The compensation and expenses of the.neutral arbitrator, and any other jointly incurred expenses, shall be borne equally by

the Union(s) and Recipient, and all other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them. ,

(I5)(c) In the event that employees) are not represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the
interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arrangement which cannot be settled by the Recipient and the
employee(s) within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and
binding dispute settlement procedure acceptable to the parties, or in the event the parties cannot agree upon such a procedure,
the dispute or controversy may be referred to the Secretary of Labor lor a final and binding determination.

(15)(d) in the event of any dispute as to whether or not a pariicular'ernployee was affected by the Project, it shall be the obligation

of the employee or the representative of the employee to identify the Project and specify the pertinent facts of the Project relied
upon. It shall then be the burden of the Recipient to prove that factors other than the Project affeaed the employw. The claiming
employee shall prevail if it is established that the Project had an effect upon the employee even if other factors may also have
affected the employee. (See Hodden's Affidavit in Civil Action No. 825-71).

(16) The Recipient will be financially responsible for the application of these conditions and will make the necessary arrarigements

so that any employee covered by this arrangement may file a written claim of its violation, through the Union, or directly if the
employee is outside the bargainingunit, with the Recipient within sixty. (60) days of the date the employee is terminated or laid off
as a result of (he Project, or within'eighteen (18) months of the date the employee's position with respect to his/her employment is
otherwise worser>ed as a result ol the Project In the latter case, If (he events giving rise to the claim have occurred over an

extended period, the 18-month (imitation shall be measured from the last such event. No benefits shall be payable for any period
prior to six (6) months from the date of the filing of any claim. Unless such claims are filed with the Recipient within said time

limitations, the Recipient shall iheceafter be relieved of all liabilities and oWigations related to the claim.

The Recipient will fully honor the claim, making appropriate paymenu, or will give notice to the claimant or his/her representative
of the basis for denying or modifying such claim, ̂ving reasons therefore. If the Recipient fails to honor such claim, the Union or
non-bargaining unit employee may invoke the following procedures for further joint investigation of the claim by'giving notice in
writing. Within ten (10) days from the receipt of such notice, the parties shall exchange such factual material as may be requested of
them relevant to (he disposition of the claim and shall jointly take such steps as may be necessary or desirable to obtain from any
third party such additional factual materials as may bo relevant, in the event the Recipient rejects the claim, the claim may be
processed to arbitration as hereinabove provided by paragraph (IS).

(17) Nothing in this arrangement shall be construed as depriving any employee of any rights or benefits which such employee may

have under existing employment or collective bargaining agreements or otherwise; provided that there shall be no duplication of
benefits to any employee, and, provided further, that any benefit under this arrangement shall be construed to include the
conditions, responsibilities, and obligations xcompanying such benefit. This arrangement shall not be deemed a waiver of anyrights of any Union or of any represented employee derived from any jother agreement or provision of federal, state or local law
(18) During the employee's protective period, a dismissed employee ̂all, if the employee so requests, in writing, be granted
priority of employment or recmployment to fill any vacant position within the, jurisdiction and control of the Recipient reasonably
comparableFdiharwhTchtheemployeeheidwIwrdism^ inllwemplbVmemof'arr^tity
arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21) herein, for which the employee i$, or by training or retraining can become, qualified; not,
however, in contravention of collective bargaining agreements related thereto, in the event such employee requests such training

or re-training to fill such vacant position, the Recipient shall provide for such training or re-training at no co^ to the employee. The
employee shall be paid the salary or hourly rate provided for in the applicable collective bargaining agreement or otherwise
established in personnel policies or practices for such position, plus any displacement allowance to which the employee may be

otherwise entitled. If such dismissed employee who has made such request fails, without good cause, within ten (10) days to accept
an offer of a position comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed for which the employee is qualified, or for which

the employee has satisfactorily completed such training, the employee shall, effeaive at the expiration of such te'n-day period,
forfeit all rights and benefits under this arrangement.

As between employees who request employment pursuant to this paragraph, the following order where applicable shall prevail in
hiring such employees:

(a) Employees in the craft or class of the vacancy shall be given priority over employees without seniority in such craft or class;

(b) As between employees having seniority in the craft or class ol theLcancy, the senior employees, based upon their service in
that craft or class, as shown on the appropriate seniority roster, shall prevail over junior employees;

(c) As between employees not having seniority in the craft or class of the vacancy, the senior employees, based upon their service in
the crafts orclasses in which they do have seniority as shown on the appropriate seniority rosters, shall prevail over junior

employees. ^



(19) The Recipient will post, in a prominent and accessible place, a notice stating that the Recipient has received federal assistance
under the Federal Transit statute and has agreed to comply with the provisions of 49 U.S.C., Seaion S333(b}. This notice shall also

specify the terms and conditions set forth herein for the protection of employees. The Recipient shall maintain and kMp on file all

relevant books and records in sufficient detail as to provide the basiCjinformation necessary to the proper application, '
administration, and enforcement of this arrangement and to the proper determination of any claims arising thereunder.

(20) In the event the Project is approved lor assistance under the statute, the foregoing terms and conditions shall be made pan of

the contract of assistance between the federal government and the applicant for federal funds and between the applicant and any

recipient of federal funds; provided, however, that this arrangement shall not merge into the contract of assistance, but shall be

independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto, and by any covered employee or his/her representative, in

accordance with its terms, nor shall any other employee protective agreement merge into this arrangement, but each shall be

' independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto.jn accordance with its terms.
I  t

(21) This arrangement shall be binding upon the successors and assignsof the parties hereto, and no provisions, terms, or

obligations herein contained shall be affected, modified, altered, or chang^ in any respect whatsoever by reason of the

arrangements made by or for the Recipient to manage and operate the system.

Any person, enterprise, body, or agency, whether publicly - or privately-owned, which shall undertake the management, provision
and/or operation of the Project services or the Recipient's transit system, or any part or portion thereof, under contractual

arrangements of any form with the Recipient, its successors or assigns, shall agree to be bound by the terms of this arrangement

and accept the responsibility with the Recipient for full performance of these conditions. As a condition precedent to any such

contractual arrangements, the Recipient shall require such person, enterprise, body or agency to so agree.

(22) In the event of the acquisition, assisted with Federal funds, of any transportation system or services, or any. part or portion

thereof, the employees of the acquired entity shall be assured employment, in comparable positions, within the jurisdiction and

control of the acquiring entity, including positions in the employment of.any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to

paragraph (21). All persons employed under the provisions of (his paragraph shall be appointed to such comparable positions

without examination, other than that required by applicable federal, state or federal law or collective bargaining agreement, and

shall be credited with their years of service for purposes of seniority, vacations, and pensions in accordance wnth the records of

their former employer and/or any applicable collective bargaining agreements.

(23) The employees covered by this arrangement shall continue to receive any applicable coverage under Social Security, Railroad

Retirement, Workmen's Compensation, unemployment compensation, and the like, in no event shall these benefits be worsened

as a result of the Project.

(24) In the event any provision of this arrangement is held to be irtvalid, or otherwise'unenforceable under the federal, state, or

local law, in the context of a particular Project, the remaining provisions of this arrangement shall not be affected and the invalid or

unenforceable provision shall be renegotiated by the Recipient and the interested Union representatives, if any, of the employees

involved for purpose of adequate replacement ur>der Section S333(b). if such negotiation shall not result in mutually satisfactory

agreement any party may invoke the jurisdiction of the Secretary'bf'ljabor to determine substitute fair and equitable employee
protective arrangements for application only to the particular Project

applied to that Project, and any other appropriate action, remedy, or

, which shall be incorporated in this arrangement only as

relief.

(25) If any employer of the employees covered by this arrangement shall have rearranged or adjusted its forces in anticipation of

the Project, with (he effect of depriving an employee ofbcneRts to which the employee should be entitled under this arrangement,

the provisions of this arrangement shall apply to such employee as of the date when the employee was so affected.
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Filtnyand Forms figRflClS, PllCloSurC.j

Contact Us QIMS En EsoatiQl

Laws and Regulations About Us



Office of Labor>Management

Standards

An afency within ih* U.S.

Oepatment of Lat>or

200 Constitution Ave NW

Washington, DC 20210

i.8«;6-«.USA-00l

FEDERALGOVERNMENTQ LABOR DEPARTMENTS)

White House About DOL

Coronavirus Resources* Guidance Search

Severe Storm and Flood Recovery AssistanceCspar^ot

Disaster Recovery Assistance Office of Inspector General

OisasterAssistance.gov

USA.gov

No Fear Aa Data

U.S. Office of Special Counsel

ABOUTTHE SITES

Freedom of information Act

Disclaimers

P(ug>lns Used on OOL.gov

Accessibility Statement

Subscribe to the DOL Newsletter

Read the DOL Newsletter

Emergency Accountability Status Link

A to Z index



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
Tran/nKTAliM

Revised 07/18/2022

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name ofAwarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Dep^artment of Transportation (NHDOT)
Name of Subrecipient/Contracting Agency: VNA (S).HCS

VNA @ HCS. shall comply with all applicable feier'a! laws, regulations, and requirements as
outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and Federal
Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as
follows:

FTA award project description: (As required to be responsiue to the FederdI Funding AceonnttibiUty and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount: $484,000.00

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)number; 20.509

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT

. SOLICITATION '

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-202I-0I7

Federal Award Date: 09/08/2021

Contact information for sub-awarding official:

Name; Michelle L. Winters Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit

Email: Michelle.L.Winters(§dot.nh.gov Phone:603-271-2449
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award; N/A

Subrecipient/Contractor Information:

Subrecipient/ContractorName: VNA @HCS

Subrecipient/Contractor SAM.GOV I.D.; K76NXGVNIXX3

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracling offitial: Maura McQueeney
Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: President/CEO
Federal Clauses: Yes

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient/Contractor Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rote negotiated hetwcen the subrecipient/conlraclor and the Federal
Government or, if no such rale exists, either a rale negotiated between the pa.ss-through entity and the suhrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rale as defined in §200.414 indirect. (F&A) costs,
paragraph (/)).

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: 7/1/23 End Date: 6/30/25



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

JUprntimtVut
Revised 07/18/2022

Total amount of FTA sub-award ob!ii?atcd bv this action {contract/amendmeni): /

For FFY: 2024 Section: 5311 Amount: $484,000.00

Total amount of FTA sub-a>vard committed to the subrecipient {arieinaieomraci A ametiJments)-.
For FFY: 2024 Section: 5311 Amount: $484,000.00

''NA @ HCS agrees to meet all requirement imposed by the pass-
e subrecipient so thai the Federal award is used in .accordance

with Federal statues, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrecipient/Contraclor, WV/t @ ffCS agrees to any additional requirements that the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity,
(NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the
Federal awarding agency'(FTA) including identification of any required financial and
performance reports. ,

The Subrecipient/Contractor, VNA (SJt HCS agrees to permit the pass-through entity (NHDOT)
and auditors to have access to the subrccipients records and financial statements as necessary for
the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and apprppriate terms and
conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

j

Date: 4/21/2023

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Maura McQueeney

Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: President^EO

Signature of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official:



intoraauL Eiervenuo Soxvice

Dixrotox, Exesqpt Organizations
Rulings ond Agreements

Date: qeC 2 4 2003

VNA AT HCS, INC.

112 MARLBORO ST

KECNC. NH 03101

Dear Sir'or Kadam:

Departnent of the Treasury
P.O. Box 2500

Cincinnati, Ohio 4S201

Person to Contact - :

KEITH JOTNES S2-00491'

Contact Tolepbone.t'inflbers:

877-92S-5500 Phone •

513-263-3756 Fax

Federal Identification ifuebor:

02-0360640

3y our deterndnation dated Scpteiitoor 1962, you were held to be exe.i^t frccn
Federal Income Tax under the provisions
Internal Revenue. Code.

of. section SOi (c)(3) of the

You recently furnished us information that KCS Community Care and {"CS
Preferred Care merged with VNA AT HCS, Inc. on June 30. 2002. In addition,
information was provided regarding the oissoclation of Home, Healthcere,
Hospice and Cormunity Services, Inc. from C 4 H Health System of the
Monadnock Region, Inc. Based on the information submitted, we have
determined that the merger and the dissociation does not affect your cxerrpt
status. The organization will continue
Kunber 02-0360640.

using Employer Identificat^ion

Please let us )fnow about any further changes in the character, purposes, _
your organizationmethod of aeration, name or address of .

If you have any questions regarding thijs matter, please contact the person
whose name and telephone nun^r appear in the heading of this letter.

Slocereiy,

'Jk
y-

Lois G. Lerner

Director, Exempt Organizations
Rulings and Agreements

Enclosure



•  K, ,

BerryDunn

Home Healthcare
Hospice y

t__li_| Community Services

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2022 and 202.1

With Independent Auditor's Report



BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AU DITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Home Healthcare. Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Home Healthcare, Hospice &
Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30.
2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and
cash flows for the years then ended.'-and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects,.the financial position of Home Healthcare,| Hospice & Community Services. Inc. and Affiliate
as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets and their
cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion ^

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in Ihe^ Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements jsection of our report. We are required to be
independent of Home Healthcare. Hospice & Community Services. Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainec
our opinion.

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

Responsibiiities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Sfafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design,
implementation and rnaintenance of internal control.relevanl to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or
error. .

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, ijnanagemenl is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the" aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Home
Healthcare. Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concem
within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Moine • New Hompshire • Mosaochuselts • Connecticut - WeslVirginio • Arizono • Puerto Rico

bcrrydunn.com



Board of DIreclors

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services,
Page-2

nc. and Affiliate

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Sifafemcnfs

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion.,Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute
assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when It exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher'than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a ̂ substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, we:-

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial-statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit proc^ures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on-a lest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

\  ' j ,
•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing ah opinion on the
effectiveness of Home'Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc. and Affiliate's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the-appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and

■"Affiliate's'ability to~continue'as"a;goihg concem-for aTeasonable period of'timer—- '■ - - -

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the.audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

i  i-J-iZ.

f^anchester. New Hampshire
December 13, 2022

-N



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMW UNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2022 and 2021

ASS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Patient accounts receivable, net

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AN

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
COVID-19 refundable advances and other deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

=TS

3 NET ASSETS

Net assets

WitKout'dohorrestrictions"

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2022 2021

$  1,298,118 $ 2,485,863
14,208 18,174

1,788,549

428,903

1,862,056

343,852
278.005

3,856,493

•

4.987,950

12,775,139 14.413.813
o

2.382.738 2 657.347

1  19.014.370 S 22.059.110

302,158 $ 437,955

961,056 1.240.725
257.913 33 582

1.521.127 1.712.262

T6;776;0i3 —~197429:9'4"r

717.230 916.907

17.493.243 20.346.848

;  19.014.370 $ 22.059.110

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thes-e consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCAREi HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

•  /
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
COVID-19 relief funding and other operating revenue
Gain on sale of financial asset

Net assets released for operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses ,
Salaries'and related expenses '
Other operating expenses "
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss) gain

Other revenue and gains (losses)
Contributions and fundraising income
Investment income, net

Change in fair value of Investments
j

Total other revenue and gains (losses)

(Deficil).excess of revenue over expenses

Net assets released for capitaracquisition

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor
restrictions

2022 2021

$ 13,018,339 $ 12.849.959
.2,959,326 4,891.571

34,300 1.800
154.426 54.350

' 16.166.391 17.797.680

12,951,084
4,480,821

363.012

17.794.917

f1.628.5261

650,889

160,709
11.867:525)

M.055.927)

(2,684.453)

30.525

11.380,022

'4.117.321
378.194.

15.875.537

1.922.143

594,666

146.960

2.623.567

3.365.193

5,287,336

109.475

$  f2.653.928) $ 5.396.811

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Changes In Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Net assets without donor restrictions

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses
Net assets released for capital acquisition

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Investment income

Change in fair value of Investments
Net assets released for operations
Net assets released for capital acquisition

Change in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

2022. 202'

$  (2,684,453) $ 5.287,336
30.525 109.475

(2.653.9281 5.396.811

13,515

2,623
•  (30,864)
(154,426)
f30.5251

f199.677l

(2,853,605)

20.346.848

139.750

2.975
54,480

(54,350)
(109.4751

33.380

5.430,191

14.916.657

$ 17.493.243 $ 20.346.848

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thes^e consolidated financial statements.
-5-



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMW UNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net.assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash (used)
provided by operating activities

Depreciation
- Change in fair value of investments
Investment income restricted for reinvestment

Gain on sale of financial assets

(Increase) decrease in the following assets:
Investments

Patient accounts receivable

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses
' Increase (decrease) In the following liabilities':

Accounts payable and accoied expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses

^ COVID-19 refundable advances an'd other

deferred revenue

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Investments f

Proceeds from sale of Investments

Capital expenditures, net of proceeds

Net cash used by investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

2022 2021

(2,853,605) $ 5,430,191

363,012 378.194

1,898,389 (2,678,047)
(2,623) (2.975)

(34,300) (1.800)

3,966 (1,688)
73,507 (263,765)
(85,051) 37.007

(48,710) (46,437)

(135,797) (452,048)
(279,869) 146,445

224.331 f2.178.4081

f876.550V 366.669

(3.218.446) (3,646,348)
2,961,354 3,427,768
(54.1031 (578.4871

(311.1951 (797.0671

(1,187.745) (430,398)

2.485.863 2.916-.261

$  1.298.118 $ 2.485.863

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMN

Notes to Consolidated

UNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE
(

Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc. is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in
New Hampshire whose primary purpose is to act as a holding company and provide management
services to its affiliate.

Affiliate

VNA .at HCS, Inc.. is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in New Hampshire whose primary
purposes are to provide home healthcare, hospice and community services.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include

Community Services, Inc., and its affiliate. VNA
the accounts of the Home Healthcare, Hospice &
at HCS. Inc. (collectively, the "Association"). They

are related through a common board membership and common management. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in" consolidation.

The Association prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB). References to U.S. GAAP in tfiese notes are to the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC).

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP. which requires the Association to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Association. These net assets may be used
and the Board of Directors (Board).

at the discretion of the Association's management

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets sutiject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions are to be met by
actions of the Association or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

-7-



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMW

Notes to Consolidated

UNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Financlar Statements '

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Income Taxes

The Association Is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). As
a public charity, the Association is exempt from| state and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal Income tax. Management has evaluated the Association's tax positions and concluded that
the Association has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require

adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated ftnancial
statements. Estimates also affect the reporter
reporting period. Actual results could differ from

/

Cash and Cash Equivalents

amounts of revenues and expenses during the
those estimates. •

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, excluding assets limited as to use.

The Assodation has cash deposits in a major financial institution v4iich may exceed federal
depository insurance limits. The Association has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
Management believes it is not exposed to any s|gnificant risk with respeci to these accounts.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides a reserve for payment adjustments by analyzing past history and
identification of trends for all funding sources in |the aggregate.. Management regularly reviews data
about revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the reserve which is netted against accounts
receivable. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are
applied against the allowance for payment adjustments.

Patient accounts receivable, net were $1,788,549; $1,862,056; and $1,598,291 at June 30. 2022,
2021. and 2020, respectively.

Investments

Investments in short-term investment options are reported as current assets. Investments held for
long-term return are reported as non-current assets.

The Association reports investments at fair value and has elected to report all gains and losses in
the (deficit) excess of revenue over expenses to simplify the presentation of these amounts in the
consolidated statement of operations, unless otherwise stipulated, by, the donor or State law.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMIV

Notes to Consolidated

UNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Financial Statements

June 30. 2022 and 2021

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest" rate, credit, and overall
market volatility risks. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments
will occur in the near term and that such chang

the consolidated balance sheets.

Assets Limited as to Use

es could materially affect the amounts reported in

Assets limited as to use include designated assets set aside by the Board of Directors and donor
contributions.

Propertv and EQuioment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Depreciation expense is computed using the - • ■ * * *■ • - ' •
related assets.

straight-line method over the useful lives of the

Property' is reviewed for impairment whenever.  events or changes in circumstances indicate the
related carrying amount may not be recoverable. When required, impairment losses on assets to
be held'and used are recognized based on the excess of the assets' carrying amount over the fair
value of the asset. ^

Net Patient Service Revenue

Services to all patients are recorded as revenue when services are rendered at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-parly payors and others, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-pai^ payors. Retroactive adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the|related sen/ices are rendered and in future periods
as final settlements are determined. Patients unable to pay full charge, who do not have other
third-party resources, are charged a reduced amount based on the Association's published sliding
fee scale.'Reductions in full charge are recognized when the service is rendered.

Performance obligations are determined basejd on the nature of the services provided by the
Association. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on
actual services rendered. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients
receiving skilled and non-skilled services in their home or facility. The Association measures the
period over which the performance obligation is satisfied from admission-to the point when it is no
longer required to provide services to that patient, which is generally at the time of discharge.

Providers of home health services to dients eligible for f^edicare home health benefits are paid on
a prospective -basis, with no retrospective, sett ement. The prospective payment is based on the
scoring attributed to the acuity level of the client at a rate determined by federal guidelines. As the
performance obligations for home health servic|es are met, revenue is recognized based upon the
portion of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
prospective payment determined for the medically necessary services..

-9-



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMIV

Notes to Consolidated

UNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Providers of hospice services to clients eligible^ for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a per-
diem basis, with no retrospective settlement; provided the Association's aggregate annual
Medicare reimbursement is below- a predetermined aggregate capitated rale. Revenue is
recognized as the services are performed based on the fixed rate amount. As the performance
obligations for hospice services are met, revenue Is recognized based upon the portion of the,
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
predetermined aggregate capitated rate per,day!

Because all of the Association's performance obligations relate to short-term periods of care, the
Association has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in PASS ASC Subtopic 606-10-
50t14 (a) and. therefore, is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the
reporting period.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported ̂ at fair vajue at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires, that is. wh'en a-stipulated time restriction end's or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same
year as received are reflected as contributions without donor restrictions in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

COVID-19 and Relief Funding

On March 11. 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus disease (cdviD-19)
a global pandemic. In response to the global |pandemic. The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services (CMS) implemented certain relief measures and also issued guidance for .limiting the
spread of COVID-19.

Local, U.S.. and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the spread of COVIp-19,
by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in. many sectors and imposing limitations on
travel and the size and duration of group meetings. Many sectors are.experiendng-disruption to
business operations and may feel further impacts related to delayed government reimbursement,
volatility in investment returns, and reduced
uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pane
government actions to mitigate them.

philanthropic' support. There is unprecedented
emic, its potential economic ramifications, and any
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMW

Notes to Consolidated

UNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021.

The U.S. government has responded with several phases of relief legislation as a response to the
COVID-19 outbreak. Legislation enacted into law on March 27, 2020, called the Corohavinjs Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), a statute to address the economic Impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak. The CARES Act, among; other things. 1) authorizes emergency loans to
distressed businesses by establishing, and providing funding for, forgivable bridge loans: 2)
provides additional funding for grants and techijiical assistance; 3) delays due dates for employer
payroll taxes and estimated tax payments for corporations; and 4) revises provisions of the IRC,
including those related to losses, charitable deductions, and business-interest.

CARES Act Provider Relief Stimulus Funds

The Association has received emergency federal grant funding urider the CARES, Act from the
Provider Relief Fund (PRF) which are funds to
COVID-19 outbreak.

support healthcare providers in responding to the

The PRF is being administered by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, these
funds are to be used for qualifying expenses and to cover lost revenue due to COVID-19. The PRF
are, considered conditional contributions and are recognized as revenue when qualifying
expenditures or lost revenues'have been incurred. The following table outlines the distributions
received, period of availability and revenue recognized during the years erided June 30, 2022 and
2021.

Distribution Period

Distribution

Amount!

Funds

Available for

Use Through

Revenue

Recognized
in 2022

Revenue

Recognized
in 2021

$  600,871Period 1 (4/10/2020 to 6/30/2020) $ 600,871 6/30/2021 %

CARES Act Paycheck Protection Program

In April 2020, the Association received a loan from the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA)
under the CARES Act Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)Mn the amount of $1,496,000. The loan
is to be used for payroll and other allowable costs authorized in the PPP rules, and forgiveness of
the loan balance is dependent upon compliance with this and other terms and, conditions of the
CARES Act. Funds used for unauthorized purposes are required to be repaid. The Association
received notification, of forgiveness from the SBA on June 25, 2021. The Association, followed the
conditional contribution model to account for the PPP loan and, accordingly, recorded the
forgiveness of the loan as COVID-19 relief funding and other operating revenue in the consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended June'30. 2021.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

I  ' '
June 30, 2022 and 2021

I  ■

American Rescue Plan Act

On March 11, 2021, the U.S. government enacted the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). ARPA,
amongst other things, provided support for health and human services workforce development in
response to COVID-19 and broader economic impacts of the pandemic. The Association received
$248,428 in grant funding under ARPA through jthe State of New Hampshire Home and Community
Based Service fund during the year ended June 30. 2022 for the purpose of workforce investment.
The Association incurred qualifying recruitmeni and retention expenses of $53,478 as of June 30.
2022, which is recognized as COVID-19 relief funding and other operating revenue in the
consolidated statement of operations'. The unsp|ent ARPA funds as of June 30, 2022 of $194,950 is
included in COVID-19 refundable advances and other deferred revenue on the consolidated
balance sheet. The funds are available to use through December 31, 2022.

2. Availability and Liauiditv of Financlal Assets

As of June 30, 2022, the Association has working capital of $2,335,366 and average days (based
on normal expenditures) cash and liquid investments on hand of 27 which includes only cash and
cash equivalents.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses and capital acquisitions not financed with debt or restricted funds (unfunded
capital expenditures), were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Patient accounts receivable, net

Other receivables

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year

2022 2021

$ 1,298,118 .$ 2.485,863
14,208

1,788,549

428.903

18,174

1,862,056
343.852

$ 3.529.778 $ 4.709.945

The Association has board designated long-term investments that could be made available for
general expenditure upon Board approval. Since these investments are currently intended for long-
term investmeri'ts. they have not been included In the information above. The Association has other
long-term investments and assets for restricted use, more fully described in Note 3, which are not
available for general expenditure within the next year and are not reflected in the amount above.

The Association has a $1,000,000 line of credit
Note.5.

available to meet short-terrh needs, as disclosed in

• 12-



HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMM

Notes to Consolidated

UNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

3. Investments arid Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, statec

Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. Government and corporate bonds
Marketable securities

Mutual funds

at fair value, are as follows;

2022

1,071,402

2,283,550

7,307,967

2.126.428

2021

$. 1,151,816

2,132,950

8,728,803
•  2.420.818

Total investments and assets limited as to use

Investments without restrictions or designatipns

Assets limited as to use
Board-designated for future use
Donor-restricted, time or purpose
Endowment investments - unappropriated spending
Donor-restricted, perpetual in nature

$ 12.789.347 $ 14.431.987

2022 2021

14.208 $

Total assets limited as to use

Total investments and assets limiiec

Fair Value

as to use

12,057.909
217,704
265,295
234.231

12.775.139

S 12.789.347

18.174

13,498.906
350,833

331,843
234.231

14.413.813

$ 14.431.987

PASS ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction
between market participants and also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to
maximize the use of observable inputs and I minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value, the fair value hierarchyj within FASB ASC Topic 820 distinguishes three
levels of inputs that may be utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1:. Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that

the entity has the ability to acce^ss as of the measurement date.
Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for

similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be comoborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputj that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMIV

Notes to Consolidated

UNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Financial Statements

June 30. 2022 and 2021

The fair values of all of the Association's investments, which are presented in the following table,
are measured on a recurring basis using Level 1 inputs with the exception of corporate bonds
which are valued based on quoted market prices of similar Investments and categorized as level 2
investments.

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30. 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Total

Cash and cash equivalents

U.S. Government and corporate bonds
Equity securities
Mutual funds

Total

Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. Govemment and corporate bonds
Equity securities
Mutual funds

Total

$  1,071,402 $ - $ 1,071,402.
2,283,550 2,283,550

7,307,967 - 7,307,967
,2.126.428 ■ - 2.126.428

% 10.505.797 $ 2.283.550 $ 12.789.347

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30. 2021

Level 1

$  1,151,816 $

8.726;603
2.420.618

Level 2

2.132.950

Total

$  1.151.816
2.132.950
8.726.603

2.420.618'

$ 12.299.037 $ 2.132.950 $ 14.431.987

Investment income and change in fair value for cash equivalents and investments consist of the
following: •» :

Net assets without donor restrictions
Investment income, net of fees
Change in fair value of investments

Restricted net assets

Investment Income

Change in fair value of investments

Total

2022 202'

$. 160,709 $ 146.960
(1,867,525) 2.623.567

2,623
(30.8641

2,975
54.480

%  f1.735.0571 S 2.827.982
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

(  •

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:

2022 2Q21

$ 515,786 $ 489.311

5,704,016 5.693,516

3,379,278 3,422,332
27.757 -

9,626,837 9,605,159

7.244.099 6.947.812

$ 2.382.738 $ 2.657.347

Land

Building and improvements
Furniture,-fixtures, and equipment
Construction In progress

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Total property and equipment, net

5. Line of Credit

I  • . .

The Association has an unsecured $1,000,000 line of credit payable on demand, with a local bank
with interest at 1% above the bank's base rale (5.75% at June 30, 2022). There was no
outstanding balance at June 30, 2022 and 2021

6. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consists of the following:

Time or purpose restrictions for: ]
Haskell fund accumulated earnings - forbffice rent
Johnson Family fund accumulated earnings - for capital

expenditures
Dementia program
Sewer line replacement
Transportation

. Hospice accumulated earnings
Capital acquisition
Operations
Jones fund accumulated earnings - for equipment
Bednarfund accumulated earnings - for general purposes
Hospice memorial garden
Barbara Duckett scholarship

Total

2022 2021

264,104 $ 313,372

4,714 7,750
26,480

. 20,000
- 72,785

958 3,934

10,365 '10,525
(414) 627

(1,671) 2,529

(2.397) 3,631

112,374 125,227

94.966 95.816

482.999 S 682.676
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMIV UNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements'

June 30. 2022 and 2021

Restrictions that are perpetual Iri nature for:
Hospice
Operations
Johnson Family fund - for capital expenditures .
Bednar endowment fund - income for general purposes
Haskell endowment fund - for office rent

Jones endowment fund - for equipment

Tola!

10,000 $' 10,000

8,623 8.623,
10,202 10.202

50,000 50.000

120,570 120.570

34.836 34.836

234.231'$ ' 234.231

7; Endowments I . ^

The Association has interpreted the Uniform Prudent. Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair.value of th'e original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this interpretation, the Association classifies as a donor-restricted endowment (a) the original value
of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent donor-restricted
endowment gifts, and (c) accumulations to the! dorlor-restricted endowment made in accordance
with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to
the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as net assets
with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated fpr expenditure by the Association in a
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.'

In accprrianr.R with the UPMIFA, the Association considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund;
(2) The purposes of the organization and the|donor-reslricted endowment fund;
(3) General economic conditions: ^
(4) The possible effect of inflation and.deflatipn;
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(6) Other resources of the Association; |
(7) The investment policies of the Association;
(8) The spending policy; and
(9) Funds with deficiencies.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The investment portfolio is ""managed to provide for the long-term .support of the Association.
Accordingly, these funds are managed with disciplined, longer-term investment objectives and
strategies designed to meet cash flow and spending requirements. Management of the assets is
designed to attain the maximum total return consistent with acceptable and agreed-upon levels of
risk. The Association benchmarks its portfolio
indices.

-16-
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-retum objectives the Association relies on a total return strategy in
which' investment returns are achieved through |bolh capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Association targets an asset allocation strategy
wherein assets are diversified among several asset classes. The pursuit of maximizing total return
is tempered by the need to minimize the volatility of returns and preserve capital. As such, the
Association seeks broad diversification among assets having different characteristics with the
intent to endure lower relative performance in |strong markets in exchange for greater downside
protection in weak markets. >

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of the assets associated with individual donor-restricted
endowments may fall l>elow the level of the donors' original gift(s). The Board's policy does not
pemiit spending from underwater endowments'. Any deficiencies are reported in net assets with
donor restrictions. At June 30. 2022 donor enijowment funds with a fair value of $88,977 were
below the donor's original gift or stipulated levels by $4,482. At June 30. 2021, there were no such
deficiencies. I

Spending Policy

The Association has a spending policy of appropriating a distribution annually up to 7% of the
endowment fund's average market value o\^er the previous 36 months. Appropriations are
determined and made on an annual basis at year-end. ,

-17-



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE
,  t . I

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30. 2022 and 2021

The following summarizes changes in endowment assets;

Without
f

Donor

Restrictions
1

$10,630,684

140,168

Balance June 30, 2020

Investment income, net

Realized and unrealized gains on
investments

Contributions

Net assets released from restrictions

Balance June 30. 2021

.Investment income, net

• Realized and unrealized loss on

investments

Contributions

Net assets released from restrictions

Balance June 30, 2022

8. Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is es fulluwb:

Medicare

Medicaid

Other third-party payers
Private pay

Total

2.623,654

102.400

With Donor Restrictions

Purpose Perpetual in
Restrictions Nature

$  314,835 $ 234.231

2,975

: 54.480

$ $
140.4471

13.496.906

158,714

(1,868,428)
270,717

331,843

2,623

(30,864)

f38.3071

234,231

Total

$11,179,750

143,143

2,678,134
$  102.400

f40.4471

14.062.980

161,337

(1.899.292)
270,717
f38.3071

$12.057.909 $ 265.295 $ 234.231 $12.557.435

Laws and regulations govemirig the Medicare

2022 2021

$ 10,455,442 $ 9,949,738
387,618 447.348

1,910,515 2.271.722
264.764 181.151

•$ 13.018.339 $ 12.849.959

arid Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid | programs. The Association believes that it is in
substantial compliance, with all applicable taws and regulations. However, there is at least a
'reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term.
Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently deterrnined to be
recoverable or payable are" included in net pa ient service revenue in" the year that such amounts
become known.'
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COm UNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated! Financial Statements

June 30. 2022 and 2021

The Association provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rales. Because the Association does not
pursue collection of-amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue. ,

The Association provided services in other health-related activities, primarily to indigent patients, at
rates substantially below cost. For certain activities, services were proyided without charge. The
Association estimates the costs associated with, providing the other health-related activities by
applying Medicare cost rep>ort methodology to determine program costs less any net patient
revenue generated by the program. The estimated costs incurred in, these activities amounted to
$1,310,676 and $442,134 for the years June 30, 2022 and 2021. respectively.

The Association is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through local
community support and state grants. Local community support consists of contributions received
directly from the public, United Way, municipal appropriations, and investment income earned from
assets limited as to use. Federal and state grants consisted of monies received from the State of
New Hampshire.

In assessing collectability, the Association has elected the portfolio approach. This portfolio
approach is.being used as the Association has similar contracts with similar classes of patients.
The Assodalion reasonably expects that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of
contracts would .not differ materially from considering each contract separately. Management's
judgment to group the contracts by portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each
portfolio category. As a result, management believes aggregating contracts (which are at the
patient level) by the-particular payor or group of payers results In the recognition of revenue
approximating that which would result from app ying the analysis at the individual patient level.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

9. Functional Expenses ' , ' .

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows:

Program services
Salaries and benefits

Program supplies ^
Travel

Contract services

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

V

Total program services

Administrative and general
Salaries and benefits

Travel

Contract services

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Total administrative and general

Total

2022 2021

$11,153,760 $ 9.677.790
626,467

391,355
1,010,901
1,066,802
312.626

626.624

355.613
1.105.855

995,528
321.616

14.561.911 13.083.026

1,797,324

93,373

1,119,986
171,937
50.386

1.702,232
.81,515

777,056

175,130

56.578

3.233.006 2.792.511

$17.794.917 $15.875.537

Management's estimate of cost allocations at a functional level is based on Medicare cost report
methodology. ' |
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30. 2022 and 2021

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

Leases that do not meet the criteria for capitalization are classified as operating leases with related
rental charges to operations as incurred. The Association's operating leases are for its office
-facilities with varying expiration dates. I

The following is a schedule, by fiscal year, of future minimum tease payments under operating
leases for office facilities as of June 30. 2022 that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of
one year: |

2023

2024

Total

46.522

41.938

68.460

Rental expense amounted to $69,302 in 2022 and $65,715 in 2021.
I
I

Malpractice Insurance

The Association maintains medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis. The
Association is subject to complaints; claims, and litigation due to potential claims which arise in the
normal course of business. tJ.S. GAAP requires the Association to-accrue the ultimate cost of
malpractice claims when the incident that gives rise to claim occurs, without consideration of
insurance recoveries. Expected recoveries are presented as a separate asset. The Association
has evaluated its exposure to losses arising from potential claims and determined no such accrual
is necessary at June 30, 2022 and 2021. The Association intends to renew coverage on a claims-
made basis and anticipates that such coveragelwill be available in future periods.

i  ■ !

11. Retirement Plan |

The Association sponsors a defined contritjulion plan. The retirement contributions by the
Association amounted to $154,133 in 2022 and $147,868 in 2021.-
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Notes to Consolidated

JNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

12. Concentraticn of Risk

The Association grants aedil without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under ihird.-party payer agreements. Following is a summary of accounts
receivable, by funding source:

2022 202:

Medicare

Medicaid and other third-party payers

Total

65 %

35

53 %
47

100 % 100 %

13. Subsequent Events

For financial reporting purposes, subsequent events have been evaluated by managemetit through
December 13. 2022. which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be
issued.
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Transportation at HCS

Key Personnel

April 2023

1 .

Name Job Title PTE Salary % Paid-.

from this

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Charles Pratt Transportation Manager Yes i 57,783 75% $43,337

Michael Galea Senior Staff Accountant Yes i 65,000 10% $6,500
•

total $122,783 $49,837



CHARLES PRATT
SKILLS j
Hands on, critical thinker with a proven track record jof transforming underperforming businesses and
teams as an effective leader, capable of working closely with diverse groups of people to achieve

superior results in manufacturing operations. Experienced in multiple aspects of management and

human resource responsibilities including vetting, interviewing and hiring of new employees as well

as payroll management.

EXPERIENCE

•Program Manager • Transportation Program, VNA at HCS • Keene, NH • September 2019 - Present

Responsible for the daiiy operations of agency transportation programs, including the City Express public

transportation and paratrahsit services. Friendly Bus door to door service for seniors and Medical Express
service. Responsible for adherence to all.Department|of Transportation regulation and reporting, program
budgeting, and overseeing driver and dispatch staff. Attend community meetings and forums to
coordinate with other transportation entities and the public related to transportation issues.

SUPERVISOR • CONTINENTAL CABLE • HINSOALE, NH • JANUARY 2019 - JUNE 2019

RespoVisible for Oii Tiivie Deliveiv, Scheduling of Machines & Employees In the Assembly area & in the

Machin»? shop. Accurafp rpporfing A rinnimRntaMnn of steps to ensure O.uality Control measurements

during each step of assembling order, to adhere to government regulations for defense systems.

Providing department meetings as needed, and weekly Management reviews.

PLANT MANAGER • FORTRESS PACKAGING • FAIRFIELO, OA • OCTOBER 2016 -OaOBER 2018

instrumental in the start-up of a new produrtion company. Managing the day to day operations, while,

instructing and monitoring safety quality and on time performance. Recorded 2 years without injury or

returned sale while training an entirely.new, unexperienced workforce to uphold a high level of
standards in support of perfect production quality. Experience loading and unloading trucks as well as

conducting facility tours with new potential accounts arid performing routine, hands on maintenance of

-new equipment.- - • —.— ; — —

PLANT MAiyAGER • MULTICELL PACKAGING • KUTTTOWN PA 19530 r OaOBER 2010 - MARCH 2015

Charged with changing the climate a'nd culture of the fjacility. Developed and implemented strategies to
transform poorly performing production facility'into a| profitable one. Reduced set-up times, vvorked
closely with vendors to reduce inventory of raw materials, increasing profitability. Cross trained

employees resulting in a greater flexibility in the workforce.

PLANT SUPERINTENDENT • INNERPAC NE • KEENE NH 03446 • SEPTEMBER1997 -OaOBER 2010.

Responsible for the-day to day operations of the manufacturing of the plant. Did scheduling of
machinery, personnel and ordering of raw materials.'Oversaw the staff, participated In daily meetings

with the General Manager and customer service. Conducted weekly updates with floor personnel.

Coordinated with shipping on incoming and outgoing shipments. Learned how to run and setup all

machines.

EDUCATION

DIPLOMA • JUNE 1982 KEENE HIGH SCHOOL



Michael! Galea

SUMMARY

Highly skilled, senior level Corporate Accountant with extensive experience In large, complex
organizations. Relied upon by senior management to ensure accuracy, best practices, and continuous
improvement. Instrumental in key initiatives and projects to create, consolidate, streamline, test, and
optimize processes, systems, and methods to assure quality, efficiency, and compliance.

General Accounting (GAAP)
Statutory Accounting (SAP)
General Ledger
Financial'Analysis
Financial Reporting

Management Reporting
Account Reconciliation

Cost Accounting
Intemal Controls & Testing
Special Projects

Process Improvement
Streamlining / Consolidation
Coordination / Liaison

Regulatory Compliance
Due Diligence

PROFESSIONAL EXPERJENCE

HOME HEALTHCARE. hOSPICE & COMMLrNITY SERVICES, Kccnc, NH
Senior Staff Accountant, 2022 - Present

• Cash Management Reporting

• Generating Cost Center Financial Reports

• Grant Reporting to State AgcnciesTor the Transportation and Healthy Starts Programs
• Assist with the Budget and Financial Audit

• • Supporting the Payroll processing function

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company

Senior Corporate Accountant, Boston HQ, MA,

Senior Divisional Accountant, Kcenc, NH, 200S

2017 - 2021 (function outsourccd/offshored)

-2017

Progressed from Divisional -accounting to General Ledger accounting for the entire organization.
Included general and statutory accounting for a large, miilfifarrtftd organiTntion, financial analysi.^ and
reporting, period end close, intemal controls, regulatoiy compliance, special projects, and ad hoc
reporting. Served as trusted, go-to resource | across the organization, including on multiple
teams/initiatives and special projects. i

• Created and analyzed Balance Sheet and Incorhc Statement analytics by state, legal entity, and line
of bu.sine.s.s.

• Reconciled and analyzed paid loss clearance accounts and resolved discrepancies.

•  Performed quarterly variance analysis for account balances over $500,000.
•  Prepared and reviewed quarterly statutory loss schedules and footnotes.
• Ensured, reviewed, and documented completion of all statutory loss schedule sign-off packages.

• Applied key controls to financial close process for attestation, including loss'interface tic-outs to
General Ledger.

• Prepared pro forma financial statements for stale license applicatibns to the Legal Department.
• Completed detailed regulatory filings for slate insurance departments.
• Completed Archer period control testing for Policy and Controls team thrice annually.
• Completed financial reporting requests for cxlcmal auditors during annual reviews.

Smiths Medical, asd, Inc., Keene, NH
Manufacturer of medical devices, equipment, and supplies.
Financial Analyst, 2004 - 2005 (function relocated to Ohio post acquisition re-org)

• ■ Reconciled and analyzed General Ledger accounts.

Contributed to monthly consolidated financial

Analyzed Profit & Loss statement results.

Prepared exhibits for corporate external auditors.

reporting package.



Michael Galea Page Two

ues.

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company i

Senior Accountant, Wcston, MA, 2003 - 2004 I
•  Prepared monthly journal entries including DAG correction and amortization.
• Completed GAAP to STAT surplus roll-forward for Liberty Insurance Holdings, Inc.
• Reconciled the Liberty Staff Legal and Medical Bill Review accounts.
• Automated the Paid Loss Clearance reconciliation.

• Assisted with General Ledger special projects.
Cost-Analyst, Kecnc, NH, 2002 - 2003
• Maintained Expense ProcKSor Mill Chart of Va
• Executed morith-end job stream for cost allocations through post back to General Ledger.
• Analyzed month-end expense results. t
• Reconciled all Cost and Budget Department General Ledger accounts.

• Researched monthly incurred roll-forward variances.

ANTHEM Blue Cross and Blue Shield, Manchester, NH
Senior Accountant, Anthem East. 2001- 2002 (rc-prg moved accounting to Maine)
•  Prepared Statutory Financial Statements for Anthcrh Health Plans of NH, Inc.
• Completed GAAP to Statutory Reserve tic-out. j '
• Reviewed monthly GAAP Financial Statements. .

• Analyzed monthly Balance Sheet variances.
• Monitored exposure reconciliations for fluctuations.

Liberty mutual insurance Company, Kccnc, NH
Accountant II, 1994 - 2001
Accountant I, 1992 - 1994

• Produced monthly Incorne Statement Flash Report for senior management.
•  Pjcpaied nuailcily and annual statutory financial statements, including all investment schedules.
• Reconciled inleraal view income statement to external .view General Ledger.

• Managed monthly trial balance production process, coordinating efforts to ensure timely and
accurate baliancc sheet reporting.

•  Handled all lixcd asset reporting including tax payments.

•  Produced detailed filings for state regulatory reporting agencies. ,

Redesigned the premium tax accrual system, reducing the premium tax accrual variance by 12%.
• Led testing phasc.pf project to consolidate affiliated company financial reporting systems.
• Directed the creation of the Combined Annual Statement.

EDUCATION

i - I

B.S., Accounting, SOUTHERN New HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY, Manchester, NH
A.S., Accounring, STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK, Coblcskill, NY


